Leverage: Redemption Episode Guide

Episodes 001–036

Last episode aired Thursday May 15, 2025







geekgirlauthority.com

The summaries and recaps of all the Leverage: Redemption episodes were downloaded from https://www.tvmaze.com and https://www.primevideo.com and https://www.geekgirlauthority.com and processed through a perl program to transform them in a <math>EMEX file, for pretty printing. So, do not blame me for errors in the text \bigcirc \bigcirc !

This booklet was $\ensuremath{\texttt{MEXed}}$ on May 16, 2025 by footstep11 with <code>create_eps_guide v0.75</code>

Contents

Season 1

easo	on 1	1
1	The Too Many Rembrandts Job	3
2	The Panamanian Monkey Job	
3	The Rollin' on the River Job	7
4	The Tower Job	9
5	The Paranormal Hacktivity Job 1	1
6	The Card Game Job	3
7	The Double-Edged Sword Job	5
8	The Mastermind Job	7
9	The Bucket Job	9
10	The Unwellness Job	1
11	The Jackal Job	3
12	The Golf Job	5
13	The Hurricane Job	7
14	The Great Train Job	9
15	The Muddy Waters Job	1
16	The Harry Wilson Job	3

Season 2

aso	on 2	35
1	The Debutante Job	37
2	The One Man's Trash Job	39
3	The Tournament Job	41
4	The Date Night Job	43
5	The Walk in the Woods Job	45
6	The Fractured Job	47
7	The Big Rig Job	49
8	The Turkish Prisoner Job	51
9	The Pyramid Job	53
10	The Work Study Job	55
11	The Belly of the Beast Job	57
12	The Museum Makeover Job	59
13	The Crowning Achievement Job	61

Season 3

1	The Weekend in Paris Job	65
2	The Digital Frankenstein Job	69
3	The Scared Stiff Job	73
4	The Hustler Job	77
5	The Grand Complication Job	81
6	The Swipe Right Job	85
7	The Shakedown in Clone-Town Job	89

63

Season One

The Too Many Rembrandts Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 1 Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Teleplay:	Friday July 9, 2021 John Rogers, Chris Downey
Story:	Dean Devlin, John Rogers, Chris Downey
Director:	Dean Devlin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Lucy Taylor (Alexandra Bligh), Escalante Lundy (Neighbor), Michael Wozniak (Lawyer), Reed Diamond (Fletcher Maxwell), Jackie Dallas (Connie Lieu), Elizabeth Elkins (Maxwell's Lawyer), Betsy Holt (Jenny), Turner Crumbley (Curator), Sara Osi Scott (News Reporter), Nick Augusta Thompson (Todd), Tabari Daniels (Protestor #1), Melissa Lightfoot (Protestor #2)
Summary:	When the team comes together to help Sophie, they intercept guilt- ridden corporate fixer Harry and decide to help him take down an evil billionaire making money on the back of an opioid crisis.



When the team comes together to help Sophie, they intercept guilt-ridden corporate fixer Harry and decide to help him take down an evil billionaire making money on the back of an opioid crisis.

The Panamanian Monkey Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 2 Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Writer: Director:	Friday July 09, 2021 John Rogers, Chris Downey Dean Devlin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Virginia Tucker (Lola), Reed Diamond (Fletcher Maxwell), Dan Cortese (Corbett), John Newberg (John Safer), Jeff Brockton (R.I.Z. Security #7), Alec Rayme (Diego), Andy Dylan
Summary:	(R.I.Z. Security #6), Ned Yousef (CCTV Guard #2), Reginal Varice (Com4rat's Manager), Sebestien Soliz (Judge Ramos), Eduardo Aldape (Panama Lawyer #1), Dino Dos Santos (CCTV Guard #1) With a new team member on board plus the arrival of Hardison's genius foster sister, the team heads to Panama to pull an elaborate heist before an evil billionaire can get his money and flee to a non-extradition country.



With a new team member on board plus the arrival of Hardison's genius foster sister, the team heads to Panama to pull an elaborate heist before an evil billionaire can get his money and flee to a nonextradition country.

The Rollin' on the River Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 3 Season Episode: 3

Originally aired:	Friday July 09, 2021
Writer:	Jill Weinberger
Director:	Marc Roskin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Piter Marek (Austin Chaudry), Ritchie Montgomery (Dennis), Owen
	Harn (Jake), Summer Selby (Lenore Petitpas), Emani White (Ava Petit-
	pas), Lyle Brocato (Billy Barnes), Bernard Hocke (Lloyd Van Winkle),
	Michelle West (Vanessa), Craig Leydecker (Marco), Victor Moran (Card
	Player), Joshua Leonardo (Croupier), Kenny Bartram (Ivan), Chris J.
	Fanguy (Russian Thug #1), Brian Philpot (Russian Thug #2), Trace
	Cheramie (Russian Thug #3), John C. Klein (Poker Player)
Summary:	The Leverage team takes on a greedy riverboat casino owner, before
	he can bulldoze the homes of longtime New Orleans natives for his
	planned expansion.



The Leverage team takes on a greedy riverboat casino owner, before he can bulldoze the homes of longtime New Orleans natives for his planned expansion.

The Tower Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 4 Season Episode: 4

Originally aired:	Friday July 09, 2021
Writer:	Marque Franklin-Williams, John Timothy
Director:	Noah Wyle
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Andy Favreau (Jason Crawley), Kim Matula (Krista), Cecilia Leal (Is-
	abella Navarro), Annunziata Gianzero (Adrienne Bisset), Nadiya Khan
	(Sana Al-Abadi), Kamran Shaikh (Arif Al-Abadi), Kyler Porche (Liam),
	Demi Castro (Mateo Navarro), Chad Governale (Casino Security), Car-
	los Lopez (Xavi), Casey Ferrand (Newscaster)
Summary:	One member of the team seeks redemption and justice by convincing
	Leverage to con a developer out of an entire luxury apartment building.



One member of the team seeks redemption and justice by convincing Leverage to con a developer out of an entire luxury apartment building.

The Paranormal Hacktivity Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 5 Season Episode: 5

Originally aired:	Friday July 09, 2021
Writer:	Chris Downey, Jill Weinberger
Director:	Marc Roskin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Gillian Saker (Tina Reynolds), Mike Massimino (Lyle Herbert), T.C.
	Matherne (Deke Herbert), Matt McTighe (The Wraith), Askia Bennett
	(Officer Stuart), Regino Palma (Hamilton)
Summary:	When a woman believes she is being haunted and runs from her home
	in terror, Sophie leads Breanna and Parker through a con to convince
	the two real estate scammers responsible to target Leverage HQ.



When a woman believes she is being haunted and runs from her home in terror, Sophie leads Breanna and Parker through a con to convince the two real estate scammers responsible to target Leverage HQ.

The Card Game Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 6 Season Episode: 6

Originally aired:	Friday July 09, 2021
Writer:	Teagan Wall, Matt Okumura
Director:	Francis Dela Torre
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Max Sheldon (Jim Cordozar), French Stewart (Deric Springer), Kunal
	Dudheker (Carter), Munda Razooki (Michael), Oscar Gale (Bolo), Han-
	nah Devlin (Jenna), Brittany Chandler (Lucy), Holly Bonney (Maiden),
	Trenise Gray (Security Officer), Michael Yahn (Guard #1), Tim Bell
	(Guard #2)
Summary:	The Leverage team dives into the world of a high fantasy collectible
	card game with a devoted following to take down a pharmaceutical
	bad boy who is price-gouging drugs to fund his own house of cards.



The Leverage team dives into the world of a high fantasy collectible card game with a devoted following to take down a pharmaceutical bad boy who is price-gouging drugs to fund his own house of cards.

The Double-Edged Sword Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 7 Season Episode: 7

Originally aired:	Friday July 09, 2021
Writer:	Marque Franklin-Williams
Director:	Jonathan Frakes
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Andrea Navedo (Maria Shipp), Lawrence Kao (Joseph Cheng), James
	Healy Jr. (Police Chief), Bowie Hamilton (Fitbit Security Guy), Tony
	Donno (Private Security Guard), Scott Daniel Johnson (Buddy Har-
	wick), Lindsey G. Smith (Libby), Shawn Sanz (Reece), Chelsea Bryan
	(ALAY-NA), Gunter Simon (Initrode Guard)
Summary:	The team takes on a brilliant software developer who is selling a
·	groundbreaking facial recognition system that threatens everyone's
	privacy except his own.



The team takes on a brilliant software developer who is selling a groundbreaking facial recognition system that threatens everyone's privacy except his own.

The Mastermind Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 8 Season Episode: 8

Originally aired:	Friday July 09, 2021
Writer:	Josh Schaer
Director:	Dean Devlin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Joey Slotnick (Fake Nate), Nick E. Tarabay (King Navid), Rasha Za- mamiri (Liliana), Jamar Rivers (Drago), Erik Bello (Head Security),
	Manon Pages (Staff Member), Kamille McCuin (Morning Host), Gwen Parker (Fake Nate's Date #1), Rolexis Delaney (Fake Nate's Date #2), Jade Kindar-Martin (Bodyguard), Joe Dryden (Navid's Driver)
Summary:	Sophie must keep her feelings in check when she discovers that some- one has written a memoir of the team, casting himself as Nate — which leads an exiled criminal to kidnap Harry and "Fake Nate," forcing the Leverage team to pull a heist.
	beverage team to pair a neist.



Sophie must keep her feelings in check when she discovers that someone has written a memoir of the team, casting himself as Nate — which leads an exiled criminal to kidnap Harry and "Fake Nate," forcing the Leverage team to pull a heist.

The Bucket Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 9 Season Episode: 9

Originally aired:	Friday October 08, 2021
Writer:	Kate Rorick
Director:	
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	LeVar Burton (Mr. Blanche), Lucy Taylor (Alexandra Bligh), C.J. LeBlanc (Maurice), Christian Stokes (Kelsey), Stephen Walker Jr. (Charlie), Antonio C. McGill (Jason), Anna Grace Loman (Emma), John Newberg (John Safer), Sean Paul Braud (R.I.Z. #1), Nicolas Bosc (R.I.Z. #2)
Summary:	The Leverage team's Holiday good deed goes awry when their attempt to give a small-town librarian the spy-thriller adventure of a lifetime is interrupted by a shadowy spy organization.



The Leverage team's Holiday good deed goes awry when their attempt to give a small-town librarian the spy-thriller adventure of a lifetime is interrupted by a shadowy spy organization.

The Unwellness Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 10 Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Writer: Director:	Friday October 08, 2021 Alayna Heim, Josh Schaer
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
Show Stars.	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Brianna Brown (Bronwyn Lark), Ashley Holliday Tavares (Melanie Brown), David Clayton Rogers (Chad Deihle), Tadasay Young (Dr. Beth Duque), Katryn Schmidt (Customer), Chad Crumley (Eivor), Lauren L. Murray (News Announcer), Terese Aiello (Shopper 1), LaKesha Glover
	(Shopper 2)
Summary:	The Leverage team sets out to discredit a lifestyle and wellness guru targeting desperate people and peddling snake oil instead of actual medicine.



The Leverage team sets out to discredit a lifestyle and wellness guru targeting desperate people and peddling snake oil instead of actual medicine.

The Jackal Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 11 Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Writer:	Friday October 08, 2021 Chris Downey
Director:	Child Downey
Director.	
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Joanna Cassidy (Stella Voleur), Helen Sadler (Josephine), Hamish Allan-Headley (Earl), Bill Kelly (Judge Clark), Kraig Dane (Phil), Gabriel
Summary:	Myles (Antonio), Joberde Metellus (Jean-Pierre), K. Steele (Cop #1), Jillian Batherson (2020 Stella's Daughter), Sean Richmond (Earl's Cronie), Connor Turley (Bartender) The Leverage team explores the failing memory of a legendary grifter to try and find her greatest score before her abusive Elder Guardian gets his hands on it and takes over her life.



The Leverage team explores the failing memory of a legendary grifter to try and find her greatest score before her abusive Elder Guardian gets his hands on it and takes over her life.

The Golf Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 12 Season Episode: 12

Originally aired:	Friday October 08, 2021
Writer:	Christine Boylan
Director:	
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Drew Powell (Jack Hurley), James Marsters (Carl), Morgan Lindholm
	(Sarah Nichols), Kevin Phan (Bao), Jamie Tran (Mai), Eric Salazar
	(Frank Dupree), Amy Le (Tien), Marc Farley (Travis), Sara Wells (Jen-
	nifer), Michael Francis Horn (Rick Saffron), Jason Ament (Goon)
Summary:	An old friend visits, sparking a self-doubting Harry to uncover an un-
	likely client on the links at his exclusive golf club.



An old friend visits, sparking a selfdoubting Harry to uncover an unlikely client on the links at his exclusive golf club.

The Hurricane Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 13 Season Episode: 13

Originally aired:	
Writer:	Josh Schaer
Director:	
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Andrea Navedo (Maria Shipp), Ben Thompson (Abel), Dennis Cockrum (McCloud), Eltony Williams (Boggs), Jade Fernandez (Roxie Jimenez), Marco Guerrero (Omar Solina), Christopher Winchester (Collins), David Anthony Buglione (Daniels), Sara Osi Scott (Newscaster), Brit- tany N. Williams (Nurse), Michael Yahn (Ertz), Matt Cipro (Finch), Lex Damis (Griffin), Jeremy Sande (Greenbeach Hospital Cop)
Summary:	Stuck together during a massive hurricane, Eliot and Parker must stop a band of corrupt cops who have taken over a small hotel, and find what the cops are searching for, before it's too late.



Stuck together during a massive hurricane, Eliot and Parker must stop a band of corrupt cops who have taken over a small hotel, and find what the cops are searching for, before it's too late.

The Great Train Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 14 Season Episode: 14

Originally aired:	Friday October 08, 2021
Writer:	Matt Okumura, Teagan Wall
Director:	
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Jon Fletcher (Blake Whitcomb), Aury Krebs (Emily), Choppy Guillotte
	(James), Prince Hammond (Leon), Jeremy Landon Hays (Karl), David
	Dahlgren (Senator Gwynette), Max Bickelhaup (Doug), Barry Hanley
	(Beefy), Liz Reinhardt Delsa (Lesley Stahl Type)
Summary:	Two local farmers are targeted by a hate group, but something more
5	poisonous on the farm leads Team Leverage to a crooked green energy
	innovator and an old-fashioned Train Heist.



Two local farmers are targeted by a hate group, but something more poisonous on the farm leads Team Leverage to a crooked green energy innovator and an old-fashioned Train Heist.

The Muddy Waters Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 15 Season Episode: 15

Wyle
nnon
John
-
ineck
n the
nnon



The Leverage team infiltrates an oil rig and a small-town trial to find evidence that a corrupt oil CEO is hiding a dangerous oil leak in the gulf, causing illnesses along the spill zone.

The Harry Wilson Job

Season 1 Episode Number: 16 Season Episode: 16

Originally aired: Writer:	Friday October 08, 2021 John Rogers, Kate Rorick
Director:	
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Andrea Navedo (Maria Shipp), Lucy Taylor (Alexandra Bligh), John Hans Tester (Ethan Bradford), Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Abra- ham Hsu (Eugene), Chris Monberg (Guard #1), Langston Fishburne (Exec), Mike Mayhall (Guard #2), Matthew Paul Martinez (Power Sta- tion Guard), Jeff Grays (Power Station Worker), Hunter Baxley (Uni- formed Riz Guard #1), Adam Horwitz (Uniformed Riz Guard #2), Dother Sykes (Uniformed Riz Guard #3), Eric Stratemeier (Suited Riz Security 'Tossed Guy')
Summary:	The team has to infiltrate the shadowy R.I.Z. to stop it from unleashing a worm that can take down the entire electrical grid, and they must use Harry to do it.



The team has to infiltrate the shadowy R.I.Z. to stop it from unleashing a worm that can take down the entire electrical grid, and they must use Harry to do it.

Season Two

The Debutante Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 17 Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Writer:	Wednesday November 16, 2022
writer.	John Rogers, Kate Rorick
Director:	Dean Devlin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Steve Coulter (Ralphie Roy), Ili Ray (Nadia
	Volkov), Dikran Tulaine (Pietr Volkov), Josh Breslow (Bradley Simkov),
	Madeleine Gardella (Flight Attendant), Chase Steven Anderson (Tohd),
	Doug Spearman (Fortescue), Georgui Kasaev (Pilot), Michael Savalir
	(Ghost Pepper Guard)
Summary:	The team pulls Harry back into the fold to help a journalist investi-
	gating the corrupt president of a small eastern European nation. But
	when the journalist is grabbed, our team has to infiltrate a London
	Ball to extract him.



The team pulls Harry back into the fold to help a journalist investigating the corrupt president of a small eastern European nation. But when the journalist is grabbed, our team has to infiltrate a London Ball to extract him.

The One Man's Trash Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 18 Season Episode: 2

Vyle
non
lde),
hols
ping
his



The crew finds out that a shady plastics exporter whose dumping threatens local waters is smuggling black market antiquities on his barges, and plots to relieve him of his ill-gotten gains.

The Tournament Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 19 Season Episode: 3

Originally aired:	Wednesday November 16, 2022
Writer:	Mel Cowan, Chuck Maa
Director:	Beth Riesgraf
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Pierson Fodé (Kyle Fury), James Preston Rogers (Brock), Ivan Mok
	(Tam), Steve Han (Tsinghua), Si Chen (Jane), Sidney W. Webb (Sean
	Wolff), Hawn Tran (Leo), Zach Primo (Dale)
Summary:	The team has to infiltrate an e-sports tournament to stop a ruthless
	team owner from mentally and physically abusing his young players.



The team has to infiltrate an e-sports tournament to stop a ruthless team owner from mentally and physically abusing his young players.

The Date Night Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 20 Season Episode: 4

Originally aired:	Wednesday November 23, 2022
Writer:	Danielle Nicki Motley
Director:	Marc Roskin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Jim Klock (Justin Richfield), Kue
	Lawrence (Mason), Robert Aberdeen (Donald Farmington), Jessica
	Blackmore (Kimberlee Freeman), Mike Capozzi (Bob McKinney), David
	E. Collier (Nick), Annie Cook (Mitzy Lambert), Todd D'Amour (Gio-
	vanni Tosca), Billy Dec (Jimmy), Melissa Lehman (Ally), Judy McDowell
	(Bitsy Lambert)
Summary:	While staging a date-night experience for Parker and Hardison at an
	ultra-secure free port facility, the team comes across another heist in
	progress and must stop it to save the life of a 13-year-old boy.



While staging a date-night experience for Parker and Hardison at an ultra-secure free port facility, the team comes across another heist in progress and must stop it to save the life of a 13-year-old boy.

The Walk in the Woods Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 21 Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Writer:	Wednesday November 30, 2022 Noah Wyle
Director:	Noah Wyle
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Eric Nenninger (Austin Kurlander), Jay Patterson (General Lionel Frick), Jonathan Medina (Paul Orozco), Casey Ferrand (Newscaster),
	Melanie Haynes (Maureen), Shane Partlow (Orpheus Officer #1), Larry
	D.E. McGhee II (Guard #2), Mike Harkins (Orpheus Officer #3), Labrandon Shead (Braddock), Selase Botchway (Mitchell Bukner),
	Alexis Capozzi (S.O.F.T. Volunteer), Cesar D' La Torre (Guard #1),
	Michael P. Sullivan (Orpheus Officer #2)
Summary:	While investigating the mysterious death of Eliot's friend, the Leverage team infiltrate an infamous enclave of power to take down the corrupt
	head of a Private Security Company.



While investigating the mysterious death of Eliot's friend, the Leverage team infiltrate an infamous enclave of power to take down the corrupt head of a Private Security Company.

The Fractured Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 22 Season Episode: 6

Originally aired:	Wednesday December 07, 2022
Writer:	Dean Devlin
Director:	Dean Devlin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Keith David (Billy), Doug Savant (AG
	James Hodgins), Shravan Amin (Josh), Mae Anglim (Kendall), Ellison
	Booker (Travis), Claire Frederiksen (Reporter), Idella Johnson (Jes-
	sica), Raphael Knotts II (Ben), Chris Ufland (Peter Marsh), Sarah Voigt
	(Alicia)
Summary:	Eliot returns to his hometown and discovers that the run-off from an
	oil fracking company is now poisoning the water and the crew plots to
	take down the powerful man behind it all.
	1



Eliot returns to his hometown and discovers that the run-off from an oil fracking company is now poisoning the water and the crew plots to take down the powerful man behind it all.

The Big Rig Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 23 Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Writer:	Wednesday December 14, 2022 Danielle Nicki
Director:	Melina Govich
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Kate Eastman (Paige Stewart), Denitra Isler (Janice), Garrett Coffey
	(Luke Stewart), Erin Cessna (Police Officer #2), Jency Griffin Hogan
	(Female Driver), Justin William Davis (Police Officer #1), Timothy
	Perez-Ross (Jorge), Benjamin Keepers (Leroy), Desmond Phillips (Fran-
	cis), Hash Patel (Ravi), Taylor Shurte (Morgan)
Summary:	The team infiltrates a trucking company to stop a pair of siblings from
	stealing their father's company and forcing his employees into inden-
	tured servitude.



The team infiltrates a trucking company to stop a pair of siblings from stealing their father's company and forcing his employees into indentured servitude.

The Turkish Prisoner Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 24 Season Episode: 8

Originally aired:	Wednesday December 21, 2022
Writer:	Chris Downey
Director:	Beth Riesgraf
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Micah Shane Ballinger (Nash's Assistant), Rob Benedict (Gray), Walter
	Coppage (Dean Deninger), Xingu Del Rosario (Romero Delgado), Anand
	Desai-Barochia (Actor), Pierson Fode (Actor), Doug Savant (Actor),
	Adam Stephenson (Jeff Leland), Erin Ruth Walker (Emma Camore)
Summary:	The team uses the true story of a World War I P.O.W. escape to free an
	innocent man framed by a pair of dirty cops.



The team uses the true story of a World War I P.O.W. escape to free an innocent man framed by a pair of dirty cops.

The Pyramid Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 25 Season Episode: 9

Originally aired:	Wednesday December 28, 2022
0 .	
Writer:	Chuck Maa, Mel Cowan
Director:	Noah Wyle
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Max Baker (Billy the Gent), Christopher Gorham (Richard Prosper),
	Virginia Williams (Debra Prosper), Taina Dominguez (Miranda), Rashif
	(Ronald), Caroline Duncan (Cindy), Chelsea Edmundson (Joanne),
	Rachel Lynne (Platinum Mama #2), Cindy Pol (Platinum Mama #3),
	Rose Sias (Guard)
Summary:	Prompted by and old friend of Sophie's, the team takes on a husband-
	wife couple who run a multi-level marketing pyramid scheme that
	preys on young mothers, emotionally and financially.
	preys on young moners, emotionary and manerally.



Prompted by and old friend of Sophie's, the team takes on a husband-wife couple who run a multi-level marketing pyramid scheme that preys on young mothers, emotionally and financially.

The Work Study Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 26 Season Episode: 10

Originally aired:	Wednesday January 04, 2023
Writer:	Teagan Wall
Director:	Marshall Tyler
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Gail Rastorfer (Carol), Rob Benedict (Gray), Robert M Castillo (Inter-
	national Cop), Anand Desai-Barochia (Actor), Pierson Fode (Actor), An-
	thony Michael Frederick (Brimley), Doug Savant (Actor), Bonnie Gayle
	Sparks (April), Adam Stephenson (Jeff Leland)
Summary:	After a college professor steals a discovery from his grad student, the
	Leverage team has to take him down, returning the credit and reputa-
	tion to the brilliant young woman in the process.



After a college professor steals a discovery from his grad student, the Leverage team has to take him down, returning the credit and reputation to the brilliant young woman in the process.

The Belly of the Beast Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 27 Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Writer:	Wednesday January 11, 2023 Jill Weinberger
Director:	Milena Govich
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Gail Rastorfer (Carol Barsten), Emily Hall (Jenna Monroe), Jeffrey Vin- cent Parise (Hank Hogan), Bonnie Gayle Sparks (April), Julian Silver (Keith), Anthony Michael Frederick (Brimley), Rebecca Buller (Officer Noble), Jordan Joseph (Waitress)
Summary:	The team takes on a sleazy music executive. Their plans are detoured when a bright and eager assistant starts. They change their plans to help the assistant unknowingly to uncover the truth.



The team takes on a sleazy music executive. Their plans are detoured when a bright and eager assistant starts. They change their plans to help the assistant unknowingly to uncover the truth.

The Museum Makeover Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 28 Season Episode: 12

Originally aired:	Wednesday January 18, 2023
Writer:	Josh Schaer
Director:	Marc Roskin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Max Baker (Billy the Gent), Anand Desai-Barochia (Actor), Damian
	O'Hare (Arthur Wilde), Leon Contavesprie (Male Partner), Ian Covell
	(Plumber), Jye Frasca (Captain), Caroline Avery Granger (Mirabelle),
	Celeste Hart (Female Partner), Kevin Saunders (Security Guard), Eric
	Tiede (Liam)
Summary:	When a Leverage International team's museum heist goes awry, our
	crew goes in to finish the job, ultimately realizing they've been lured
	into a trap by a treacherous old friend.



When a Leverage International team's museum heist goes awry, our crew goes in to finish the job, ultimately realizing they've been lured into a trap by a treacherous old friend.

The Crowning Achievement Job

Season 2 Episode Number: 29 Season Episode: 13

Originally aired:	Wednesday January 25, 2023
Writer:	Kate Rorick
Director:	Marc Roskin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Noah Wyle
	(Harry Wilson), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon
	(Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Damian O'Hare (Arthur Wilde), Alexandra
	Park (Astrid Pickford), Anand Desai-Barochia (Dr. Phineas Dunbar),
	Nick Boraine (Commander Davies), Andrew Farrier (FBI Agent), Caro-
	line Avery Granger (Mirabelle), Eric Tiede (Liam), Loki D. Wolf (Control
	Room Guard)
Summary:	When a formidable enemy steals the Maharaja's Crown and traps the
	crew in the museum, the Leverage team must find a way out and the
	crown before they go down for the crime.



When a formidable enemy steals the Maharaja's Crown and traps the crew in the museum, the Leverage team must find a way out and the crown before they go down for the crime.

Season Three

The Weekend in Paris Job

Season 3 Episode Number: 30 Season Episode: 1

Originally aired:	Thursday April 17, 2025
Writer:	John Rogers
Director:	Marc Roskin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Gina Bellman
	(Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Aldis Hodge (Alec Hardison), Jack Coleman
	(Arizona Mike), Tyla Harris (Isabelle Dulotte), Artur Zai Barrera (Gus-
	tav Ekimov), Cody Bruno (Handsome Guard)
Summary:	On the run from a busted heist in Paris, the Leverage team finds them- selves taking shelter among oligarchs auctioning off their home na- tions' precious resources. On the fly they have to create an entirely new con to take down the group's ringleader and save a well-intentioned activist.



The episode begins at Sommersby's Auction House in Paris, France. Hardison and Parker step into a hallway; Hardison gives the team a go on the con. As they walk, he shares with Parker that he thinks they needed more prep for the job. Parker gives a heist recap. Their mark is Gustav Ekimov, a Russian money launderer who uses art to finance terrorism. The con: steal the art.

They cross paths with Sophie on the arm of a Frenchman, laughing and chatting in French. Hardison greets her. As

they chat, Sophie passes a wallet to Hardison, who passes it to Parker, who extracts the access card they need and pops it back in the man's pocket. They part ways. Parker continues a previous conversation, bemoaning the fact that they were in London for two weeks and never stole a thing. Hardison reminds her of Sophie's rule: No "criming" while she's visiting her step-daughter, Astrid, the Interpol agent.

Parker and Hardison slip into the now-accessible door. A security guard spots them, but Eliot intercepts him and drags him away, commenting as he does so that Sophie's reconciliation with Astrid is awkward, just like his with his father. Sophie steps out of a nearby door, giving Eliot somewhere to stash the guard. She admits that giving Astrid a meaningful but stolen gift was a mistake.

Spotting a Sommersby's staff member in the hallway, she greets him in German, pickpockets his phone, and throws it to Hardison as he walks by. He stops to help Parker climb into a ceiling vent. That done, he clones the phone, reassuring Sophie that she's making good choices. Eliot's fighting another guard in the next hallway. He gives Hardison access to the guard's pocket to stick the stolen phone in and kicks him through a door.

Springboarding off the comment about choices, he asks Hardison if he's talked to Parker about his. Hardison shushes him harshly, opens a door, revealing Parker hanging from the ceiling over a display case with a small gold owl inside. She asks what Eliot meant, and Hardison scrambles for an answer, throwing out a vague reference to Breanna. Sophie backs him up, reminding everyone that Breanna's visiting some college campuses with Harry and his daughter. Changing the topic back, Sophie asks Hardison what gift he'd get someone who works at Interpol. Parker drops out of the ceiling, hands Sophie the owl, and states, "Nate and Astrid are the same." Sophie wonders out loud if there's just too much change all at once. Parker's concerned about more changes. She says she's done changing. Hardison tries to talk to her about that, but Eliot interrupts as he joins them. Eliot brings the conversation back to Gustav Ekimov, whose owl they've just stolen. Turning around, Eliot points out that a very drunk Ekimov is about to walk into the room that is now owl-less.

The team runs, jumping into a catering van and speeding away. Ekimov's men follow in two sedans and shoot at them while Hardison's working on finding an escape route. Parker says they'll have to lose the pursuers first, and the van's not fast enough. Eliot throws a bag of flour over his shoulder and opens the back doors. He throws the bag of flour at the car, triggering the airbags and knocking out the goons in the front seats. Eliot takes the rest out but sustains a bad knife wound to his left bicep in the fight.

Outside a large estate house on the outskirts of Paris, Sophie observes guests arriving from a distance. In the back of the van, Eliot is duct-taping his arm to slow the bleeding. Parker steals two sets of wait staff uniforms for Hardison and herself. Hardison informs the team that all the CCTVs within a mile's radius are shut off. He also discovers the estate house has an entrance to the Paris Catacombs, which excites Parker. They'll use the catacombs to escape.

Eliot acts as Sophie's security as she mingles. When Hardison's looking for an identity for her, he finds a new one named Violet Cesario that makes Sophie laugh nervously. Eliot's casing the room and identifies more than the usual armed security.

A woman's voice cries out to be let go. Security drags Isabelle Dulotte in. She's accusing an American man in a suit of killing the farms around her town. The American directs the guard to take her to the vault to be dealt with after the party. The guests only chuckle and carry on.

Hardison discovers Isabelle is from Neddleton, Mississippi. She gets Harry on the phone, and he's just passed Neddleton. Explaining that their host has something to do with that town, she tells Harry to drive back and investigate. Sophie decides it's time to meet their host. She checks in with Hardison and Parker, who tell her the vault has a very big guard standing watch.

Parker reminds Hardison that the catacombs run under the house. Despite his dislike of "claustrophobic tunnels filled with thousands of skulls and dozens of generations of dead people," he allows that it's a way into the vault. Knowing the concrete is made of limestone, he heads for the kitchen.

Sophie finds the host, who introduces himself as Arizona Mike. Eliot realizes Mike is known for his hot wings. Mike explains that when he started out, he discovered supplying his own chickens for the wings required a lot of water. That led him to be the "water guy" at these resource auctions. Sophie uses the Victoria Chenenkov alias, representing the Russian Kirchtov Investment Group's interests in Europe and America.

Hardison and Parker find the catacomb path right below the vault floor. As they're setting up, Parker returns to the conversation Hardison said was about Breanna. He tries to introduce the idea of doing something different, but Parker's perspective doesn't dovetail with his. Instead, he focuses on the job at hand, explaining that limestone reacts to carbon, so forcing water through a charcoal filter will melt the mortar between the stones.

Mike gives Sophie and Eliot a tour and explains which countries are auctioning which resources at this summit. Sophie questions the number of government officials present. Mike explains that a lot of deals get made on the side, out of sight, and with no questions asked.

In the vault, Isabelle sits on a crate. A sound comes from the ground. She looks down, and the floor's paving stones suddenly fall away. Parker pops up and is dismayed at the empty vault. She introduces herself to Isabelle and asks what's up with Mike. Isabelle explains that he stole the water from their town's aquifer.

At the party, Mike reveals he has a tanker of water sitting in the port of New Orleans that'll be up for auction. He walks away, and Sophie calls Harry. He's in Neddleton and tells her the aquifer's collapsed and there's a visible sinkhole as proof.

Down in the vault, Isabelle is refusing to leave. She wants to get evidence that Mike is breaking the law. Parker tries to force her to leave, but Sophie says it's okay if she wants to stay. She has a plan.

Parker and Hardison approach a guard upstairs and convince him that some of the rich guests want him for an Eyes Wide Shut scenario. Once he leaves, they enter Mike's office. While Parker

breaks into the safe and Hardison breaks into his computer, they finish their conversation. Hardison admits that he feels done with heists. He doesn't like getting shot at. Parker passes Hardison the bank papers she finds in the safe and asks if even jumping off buildings isn't fun anymore. He says it's fun only because he loves doing things with her.

Having hacked Mike's computer, Hardison accesses all the auction participants' accounts and makes micro-deposits into them. Meanwhile, Sophie approaches Mike and offers the owl as their investment. Mike says everything is paid for through digital accounts. Sophie reminds him that she represents Russians, and they don't put anything online because it can be seized. Eliot acts freaked out that Mike is handling these transactions through online accounts. He tells Mike that Interpol's probably tracking all the accounts. All his auction participants need to check to see if there have been microdeposits made, testing the accounts for authenticity.

Mike returns to the main room and asks everyone to check their accounts for microdeposits. Stunned, he realizes that Sophie's owl is the way to go. He has the auction participants ante up valuables and place them in the vault.

Harry calls Sophie to report he's at the port but doesn't have a way in. Sophie gives him a pep talk, encouraging him to try something on his own. Meanwhile, Isabelle watches as a lot of expensive art pieces roll into the vault with her. Upstairs, Eliot wonders how Sophie knew the guests had art stored in Paris. She replies that he knows violence the way she knows rich people.

The team regroups to discuss the plan. Sophie identifies the pieces they need to steal. Harry calls, dressed as a mariachi band member, and tells them the tanker is already sold. Eliot notices Ekimov arriving. Ekimov confronts Mike, calling him a thief. Sophie sends Parker, Hardison, and Eliot to get Isabelle out, whispering something to Parker before she leaves.

Sophie approaches Ekimov and Mike, offering to translate. Ekimov says someone stole art from him. Their van is outside Mike's house. He's waiting on security footage to identify the thieves. Mike insists there are no thieves in his house.

Eliot tells the others that he's lost so much blood, his left arm doesn't work. Parker proposes Hardison do the fighting to make things fun again and handcuffs Eliot to a railing. While she picks the vault's lock, Hardison gets beat up. Upstairs, Sophie suggests the thieves are targetting Mike as well as Ekimov, stealing the art and antiquities now stored in his vault. Mike leads the crowd down to the vault.

After Hardison tries the Vulcan Nerve Pinch on the guard, Eliot breaks the railing. Between the two of them, they defeat the guard. Parker opens the vault, and they all lock themselves in with Isabelle. Just then, Mike leads Sophie, Ekimov, and the auction participants to the vault door, where they find the unconscious guard. As they enter, Ekimov gets a message that the image of the dark-haired woman thief is incoming. Sophie draws their attention to the hole in the floor of the safe.

Mike realizes Isabelle's gone. Ekimov shows him a photo of her, having received it allegedly from security footage but actually from Hardison. Mike argues there's no evidence she stole anything. Ekimov finds the owl Parker planted in the vault. Mike recognizes it as the owl Sophie showed him. But Sophie's gone already, hopping down the hole into the catacombs while Ekimov confronted Mike.

Before jumping in the van, Sophie calls Astrid and lets her know about the auction participants heading back into Paris carrying a load of undeclared assets and incriminating evidence. She wishes her a happy birthday, and they leave.

Back in New Orleans, Harry debriefs the Leverage: Redemption team on the fallout from the con. Sophie observes that damage was done to Isabelle's town. They got on Arizona Mike's case too late. Hardison agrees, stating that he wants to get out in front of the bad guys rather than cleaning up after the fact. He's taking six months off from Leverage to figure out how to do that. As a last note, he reveals that Violet Cesario is Sophie's dating profile name.

Hardison has a chat with Eliot and a serious talk with Parker. They conclude that things are changing, and everything changes at its own speed. However, pretzels are perfect.

The Digital Frankenstein Job

Season 3 Episode Number: 31 Season Episode: 2

Originally aired:	Thursday April 17, 2025
Writer:	Chris DowneyJacky Watson
Director:	Valerie Weiss
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Gina Bellman
	(Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Rachael Harris (Judge Marlene Gan-
	non), Christoph Sanders (Frank Stanford / Tim), Andy Cohen (Steve
	Pointer), Anthony S. Goolsby (Juror #7), Kim Baptiste (Zoe), Henry
	Bazemore Jr. (Greg), Mia Frost (Cheryl), Tevin Marbeth (Mateo), Satya
	Nikhil Polisetti (Elton), Royal Ervin (Newswoman), Jack Tynan (Rick)
Summary:	The team conducts a sting to snare a corrupt judge by using the per-
	fect undercover briber — a completely virtual tech visionary generated
	by A.I. — only to watch as their "Digital Frankenstein" quickly spins
	out of control.



The episode opens with a man in a hoodie waving off a waitress at a diner. Another man comes in and addresses the waitress as Cheryl, saying he just wants to talk. She reminds him there's a restraining order. When she calls 9-1-1, he pulls out a gun. The hoodie man tackles him from the side. The gun goes off in the struggle, hitting the hoodie man in the gut.

At a later date, Harry Wilson questions the hoodie man, now in a suit, on the stand. The gunshot victim testifies that he'd been at the diner after a double shift

at the hospital as a pediatric nurse. He states that the second man came in and pulled out a ghost gun — an untraceable firearm put together using a kit or random parts. The opposing lawyer objects that he isn't qualified to identify the weapon as a ghost gun.

Judge Marlene Gannon doesn't respond to the objection as she's browsing a bourbon site on her computer. When her attention is brought back to the trial, she sustains the objection despite Harry offering qualifications for the witness's expertise. Harry turns to his co-counsel, who wonders if the judge hates the case, them, or both. Behind him, in the gallery, Breanna sits, wide-eyed, texting quickly. She gets up and leaves after Harry spots her.

The CEO of Covert Craft, Steven Pointer, is next, and he claims the company sells a buildyour-own kit for personal weapon hobbyists. When he splits hairs regarding selling guns versus selling kits that build guns, Harry is skeptical of the difference, and opposing counsel accuses him of badgering the witness. The judge sustains the objection and warns Harry about trying her patience.

After court adjourns, Harry's co-counsel, Elton, tries to put a positive spin on the case, pointing out that one of the jurors, Juror #7, a landscape architect, has been taking notes. Harry tells him that if the judge is bought, it won't matter what verdict the jury turns in. He tells Elton that he knows for a fact that Judge Gannon can be bought. He hands Elton testimonies to review and says he's going to see some friends.

When Harry walks into Leverage HQ, Parker, Eliot, and Breanna are waiting for him. With Sophie visiting Astrid, they decided to help him out. First, they sent a Trojan Rolex to Pointer,

who stored it in his safe. Next, Eliot went in as Militia Mountain Man, a social media personality with over 200,000 followers, thanks to Breanna's bespoke bots. Pointer rolls out the red carpet for someone he thinks will promote Covert Craft's kits.

While Pointer gives Eliot a tour and pitch, Parker breaks into his office through the ceiling. When a security guard looks like he's going to go into the office, Eliot causes a disruption, forcing the guards to subdue him by hitting him with a flashlight, spraying him with mace, and siccing a robot on him.

At HQ, Parker hands Harry a folder she took from the safe. They discovered that, a few days before the trial began, Pointer gave his employees a thousand dollars each to donate to the judge's re-election campaign. Harry can't help but laugh hysterically because this proof of bribery is actually perfectly legal. In order to find the judge guilty of accepting bribes, they'd need a video of someone handing her the bribe, stating it was a bribe, and her accepting the bribe, promising to find in their favor because of the bribe.

Parker rolls her eyes, stating that if any one of them was caught on video giving a bribe to a judge, they'd be arrested. Breanna suggests the person paying the bribe doesn't need to exist. By hacking into the Louisiana DMV, she's used their database to create the image of someone who radiates power and wealth. It's a white guy she's named Frank, short for Frankenstein. Using motion capture tech, she can puppet Frank to do or say anything she wants.

Her con is for Frank to arrange the quid pro quo in a secretly recorded online meeting, and then a bag of money with a hidden camera will confirm the bribe's acceptance. Harry admits that all that evidence might get Gannon thrown off the trial. Breanna states they'll need to manufacture an urgent need for cash. Harry says bourbon is the white whale here.

At the Bourbon Showcase, Gannon's calling visitors over to her Mardi Grain Bourbon booth. Harry makes his entrance just as Parker and Eliot, sporting crazy accents, start arguing over their casks. Eliot, in his Latin American accent, proclaims that his casks are Old Magnolia casks, catching Gannon's attention.

Back at HQ, Breanna practices Frank's big pitch speech. The AI-generated audience cheers the introduction of a 3-D printer the size of a shoebox.

Gannon approaches Eliot, declaring that all the Old Magnolia casks were destroyed during Prohibition. Once he convinces her that his are the real deal, she wants to buy them. He sets the price at \$20,000 each, cash.

Sophie returns to HQ and debriefs the con with Breanna. Breanna explains that she's made Frank such an online presence; billionaires are clamoring to fund his startup. She finds it all very disheartening. Rick Bellamy, a local billionaire, calls Frank up to video chat, and Breanna slides into character, manipulating Rick into setting up a group video chat with Gannon. Sophie is impressed.

Things go well in the video chat with Gannon until Pointer crashes in and insists on speaking with Gannon in a private breakout room. Breanna hacks into it, where Pointer warns Gannon that she doesn't really know Frank. Gannon returns to the main chat and insists on meeting Frank in person.

Breanna agrees to the meeting despite Parker indicating it's a bad idea. Once the meeting ends, Parker asks how they can make someone who doesn't exist suddenly exist. Breanna has another idea.

Retracing her composite-making steps, Breanna finds Tim, who matches Frank's look most closely. Dressed like M.I.B., Breanna and Parker track him down at a pool cleaning job. They recruit him to be a body double for Frank.

Eliot and Sophie set up a grift to convince Gannon that the casks he has are legit. She hears Sophie setting up a buy and barges in, insisting Eliot attend her fundraiser. She promises the money will be there.

At Leverage HQ, Harry, Parker, and Breanna prep Tim for the fundraiser. It's not going well, and Breanna's about to lose it. Parker calls a break and tells Harry to take Tim for a walk while Parker talks Breanna down.

Harry spots Tim's arrival at the judge's fundraiser. Sophie and Eliot are at the bar. Breanna and Parker monitor Tim's movements through his button camera.

Tim's first encounter with Gannon is successful, despite some of his former pool-cleaning bosses being present. Eliot sees Pointer walk in and fills Sophie in on the Mountain Militia Man identity he used with Pointer before. Pointer heads straight to Tim, where he tries to poke holes in his story. Tim draws from his self-help tapes and passes Pointer's sniff test. Afterwards, he takes the satchel of cash to her office. Waiting for her to join him, he notices an eagle sculpture and makes a decision.

Harry trails Gannon to her office, but she comes out almost immediately, texting someone frantically. He sneaks in after she's left and reports that Tim and the money are gone.

Pointer badmouths Tim/Frank to Gannon when she asks where Tim/Frank's gone. Breanna gets to work deep-sixing Covert Craft's reputation online. Parker notes that the money is still at the party. Breanna sees that Tim is calling Eastway Bank. Harry figures something out and leaves to make a phone call. He finds Tim in a washroom trying to pay off the bank that's foreclosing on his mother's house.

At the fundraiser, Eliot runs a double grift. He approaches Pointer as the Militia Mountain Man and apologizes for the disturbance he caused. Then he walks to the judge and slips into his "Cask-iana" Jones identity. Sophie watches, amused.

Breanna arrives at the party and joins Harry at the washroom door. She gives Tim a motivational speech, convincing him that the algorithm picked him because he's capable of making a difference. This gets Tim moving. He meets Gannon in her office and initiates the bribe payoff. However, Pointer storms in and takes the money, promising to turn Tim/Frank into the feds.

Outside, Eliot intercepts him and insists on discussing the Reckoning. Pointer dismisses him and pushes past.

At the diner (from the episode's start), Pointer joins a man at a booth, addressing him as Special Agent Finch. He tells him that Frank Stanford tried to destroy his company by bribing a judge. He pushes the bag of money at him. "Finch" opens the bag and finds one of Covert Craft's guns inside.

Flashback: Eliot slips the firearm into the money bag when he encounters Pointer outside the judge's office.

In the diner, Pointer's waving the gun around, causing other diners and staff to panic. "Finch" asks him why he's trying to bribe a member of the jury for his trial. He's not a Special Agent. He's Juror #7, the landscape architect.

Flashback: Sophie on the phone at the fundraiser. First, she takes a call from Pointer, promising to put him in touch with someone in the FBI to report the attempted bribe. Then, she switches to a more cultured tone and tells a landscape architect the Sultan would like a water feature. She promises to send him an address where he can meet with the house manager.

Pointer realizes he's been set up. He sees the Leverage Team sitting at a nearby booth. When he tries to run, the police nab him almost immediately.

In court, the jury tampering comes to light, and Judge Gammon has to declare a mistrial. When Elton asks Harry how he can repay him, Harry hands him a folder and asks him to take on Tim's mother's foreclosure case. Elton watches Gannon leave the courtroom, commenting that it's a shame that tomorrow, she'll be back on the bench taking legal bribes. Harry points out that she needs to stand for re-election, and a single scandal could ruin someone like her who runs on a platform of morality.

Judge Gannon arrives home to a crowd waiting at her front door. A reporter asks her about a picture of her pool cleaner leaving her fundraiser with a bag of money. Gannon tells her that the man in the photo isn't a pool cleaner, it's Frank Stanford, who tried to bribe her. Pointing to her campaign sign, she reminds them that she stands for manners, merit, and morals. As she's making her exit, Tim walks out from the side of the house with his pool-cleaning supplies, wearing nothing but yellow swim shorts.

Her husband and aide walk into the house, locking her out. The reporters surround her. Harry and Parker are nearby to witness the judge's downfall and salute Tim for his service to his country.

At HQ, at dinner with Breanna, Sophie reads the obituary for Frank Stanford. In lieu of flowers, Breanna had mourners donate to victims of gun violence. Despite her disillusionment with merit versus appearances, Sophie tries to convince her that her skills prove that she is better equipped for the world than someone like Tim. Her gem of a line for the episode is "Fortune favors the beautiful, but it can also be cruel to the sincere."

The Scared Stiff Job

Season 3 Episode Number: 32 Season Episode: 3

Originally aired:	Thursday April 17, 2025
Writer:	Jamey Perry
Director:	Jonathan Frakes
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Gina Bellman (Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Sam Witwer (Peter Luna), Mary Hollis In- boden (Bobbi), Jamie Marie Dunn (Cop #2), Kanesha Washington
Summary:	 (Gisele), Dominique McClellan (Cop #1), Chauncey Slack (Ben Akondro), Billy Blair (Tom), Samuel Reece (Florist), Yadin Goldman (Goth Garrett), Mosiah Chartock (Ben Jr.), Zarah Hokule'a Spalding (Goth Gail), Margo Gignac (Receptionist) Our team runs the ambitious "Christmas Carol" con on a wannabe cryonics mogul who coerces dying patients into exploitative contracts bankrupting the loved ones they leave behind. But when the mark escapes the artificial world the team has built, they must race to find his assets before the entire job is blown.



The episode opens with a family gathering to say goodbye to an elderly man, Ben Akondro. His tearful pregnant daughter, Gisele, promises his grandson will carry on his name. As he flatlines, they all break down in tears. Seconds later, Pete Luna with The Gift of Time sweeps in with his crew and carries off the man's body to be stored cryogenically. While the family protests, Luna presents a contract that the man signed, committing the family to the storage fees. Seven years later, the late man's

daughter meets with Sophie at Akondro Plant Nursery and tells her the storage fees ballooned at the seven-year mark. She believes Luna exploited her father's cancer diagnosis and wish to meet his grandson, coercing him to sign the contract. Now, the storage fees are bankrupting the family business.

She tells Sophie about the banana tree. An old folk tale from Madagascar says that God gave the first man and woman the choice of how they would die — like the moon or like the banana tree. The moon dies monthly and resurrects in a cycle that repeats forever. The banana tree dies once forever, but sends out little green shoots that become new banana trees first.

Sophie briefs the team on Luna and his scam. Harry has to tell them that the contract Luna uses is solid and legal. They all take a turn sharing what they'd like done to their bodies after they die, with Parker intuiting Eliot's to his distress.

Breanna wants to The Christmas Carol Luna. Eliot argues Hardison always proposed that con, but there were too many moving parts. Breanna isn't deterred by Hardison's past setbacks. Sophie insists they prep more and investigate Luna and his business.

Parker and Eliot present as a squabbling couple. Eliot hijacks a flower arrangement en route to Luna's office. He sweet-talks his way past the front desk and delivers the flowers to Bobbi at The Gift of Time. Watching through the surveillance cams, Breanna and Sophie learn that Luna

is afraid of aging/dying; there's someone named Danielle; and Bobbi has an unrequited crush on him.

Parker finds the neighboring office's front desk staff, Garrett, distractedly sketching pentagrams and the number six. The New Orleans Life Insurance office staff are predominantly goth-leaning. Garrett has a crush on the surly Gail. Parker lets him know the basement is full of frozen dead people. Garrett excuses himself to go to the restroom. Parker finds a vent that gives her access to Luna's office.

Luna's meeting with a man named Tom, who's demanding body parts, specifically tendons. Luna bemoans the fact that he doesn't get any credit or appreciation for monetizing death. The families of his clients just complain.

Sophie walks into Luna's office as a prospective client. She will draw Luna out so Parker can ransack the office. Breanna's job is to find his digital assets. Bobbi welcomes Sophie and explains that she was the company's first investor. She's a faithful believer in cryonics and Peter Luna. She tells Sophie about Luna and his late wife, Danielle.

Luna and Tom finish their meeting. Seeing Sophie in the waiting room, Luna ushers her in and gives her the pitch. Sophie balks, saying she can't commit today. She keeps picturing herself in an ice tray at the back of the freezer. Luna offers to give a tour of the facilities to set her mind at rest.

When they get downstairs, they find Garrett trying to pick the lock to the cryonics facility. Luna yells at him, and he runs off. Luna and Sophie walk around the space for a while, but Breanna and Parker come up empty on finding his assets.

At Leverage HQ, Breanna breaks down the value of a legally acquired cadaver. Parker turns over a receipt she found in Luna's safe for a cash-to-gold transaction. Harry admits that's a common way to hide assets. Luna owns several properties where he could hide a box of gold.

Sophie opens the floor to con pitches. Breanna breaks out A Christmas Carol again. Eliot points out they don't do ghosts because Luna's never going to buy them as ghosts. Breanna presents her plan binder and explains that her con makes Luna the ghost.

Harry's feedback is that Luna isn't Scrooge. He isn't redeemable because he doesn't want to be redeemed. Breanna counters that they don't have to change him for good. They just have to scare him enough for him to lead them to his gold. Sophie gives Breanna the go-ahead.

The plan involves steampunk goggles, sedatives, silver lamé fabric jumpsuits, and a shock collar. Cue holiday music-scored preparation montage.

On Christmas Eve, Luna leaves the office on the phone, making up a reason he can't spend the evening with Bobbi. Eliot bumps into him outside the building, jabbing him with a sedative. Luna gets in his car but passes out soon after and never gets out of the parking lot. Eliot comes by to check on him and pronounces him "Dead."

From a monitoring station, Breanna calls everyone to their places. The only activity in the building is the insurance company's Christmas party. Down in the cryonics lab, Parker unzips the covering on Luna's face. He's lying on a medical gurney. She's done up like Nurse Ratched and pronounces that his cranial reassembly makes the "entity" unsuitable for knowledge work. When she flashes red pupils at him, he sits up suddenly, screaming in terror.

While Santa does a keg stand at the Christmas party, Breanna sends Sophie in as the Ghost of Christmas Past. Luna recognizes her as the client from a few days ago. She informs him that it's been 30 years. Doctors found a cure for cancer six months ago, so she was reanimated. Now she helps others who have been vitrioled as a Reanimation Specialist. He doesn't believe her and tries to leave. She zaps him with the shock collar.

He insists on seeing proof that he died. Sophie pulls up a doctored video reporting his car crash and an obituary that states no one preceded him and he left no one behind. Footage of his funeral shows an empty room. Sophie tells him that even Bobbi didn't attend, and he's very belittling of Bobbi.

When the drunk Christmas Party Santa tries to get downstairs, Eliot intercepts him, and Santa picks a fight in the stairwell. Meanwhile, it's Harry's turn in the con. In the role of Ghost of Christmas Present, he introduces himself as Ashton Mountebank. He owns Gift of Time now. He gives Luna the rundown on the past 30 years.

When Luna asks him to take off the collar, Harry explains he can't because Luna is a F.O.E. — a Fully Owned Entity. Reanimated people have to work off their time in indentured servitude before pursuing a free life. Harry plays the nice card and offers to knock ten years off the total.

Breanna sends Eliot after the Goth couple, Garrett and Gail, but he's busy chasing down Santa Claus. Garrett has a master access key and opens the Gift of Life doors, revealing all the cryonic chambers. Gail grabs him by the lapels, incredibly turned on by the adventure. Parker interrupts them, freaking out about being bitten by a supposedly dead body. She flashes the red eyes at them, and they run.

Santa wanders in after they leave. As Sophie returns to Luna, Santa stumbles by. Sophie distracts Luna with details about the lives of F.O.E.s and the Retrieval Specialists that prowl the streets looking for escaped F.O.E.s. Eliot tackles Santa and gets him out of sight.

She gets worked up and shares that to escape, he'd need money to hire a Coyote to escort him to the Freelands. Having said too much, she leaves him alone again and rejoins Breanna in the monitoring station. They both blanche when they see Bobbi appear on the surveillance camera, carrying a picnic basket. Sophie offers to take care of her and heads out. Breanna congratulates everyone on wrangling things expertly, then announces that Peter has escaped.

As Luna runs out the front doors, Eliot, dressed as a futuristic bounty hunter, snares him and threatens him with a machete. Brandishing the blade, he prepares to harvest Luna but gets tasered by Breanna, dressed as a Coyote. She offers Luna a chance of survival by getting into the van.

Driving away, he asks her if she's a Coyote. She replies that she is if he has anything valuable with which to hire her. He says that he has gold. They end up at the cemetery. He hid the gold bars in Danielle's crypt, admitting he made up Danielle as a cover story. They load the gold into the van. Breanna tells him that if they separate, he must follow the fires to the Freelands. He acknowledges this, pushes her to the ground, and drives away.

Luna spots fires in the distance and heads their way, keeping Breanna's words in mind. Seeing a sign for the Vreelands Restaurant & Bar, he pulls in and parks. Running inside, still only dressed in a silver lamé jumpsuit, he hugs people to celebrate making it out of the District.

He sees an ad on the big-screen TV for a Leukemia Fundraising Tournament and realizes cancer hasn't been cured. Over by the juke box, Sophie, Parker, Harry, and Eliot are watching him. He tells them they won't get away with this because he's going to sue them. Turning around to call the police, he runs right into a couple of officers. But when he turns back to accuse the team of drugging and abducting him, they're gone.

He tries to explain everything to the police in a confused, garbled way. Breanna comes in, wearing a Santa hat, and identifies him as the man who stole her van. He accuses her of wanting his gold. She hands the officers a mesh bag of gold chocolate coins. The police feel Luna's probably high on something and agree to detain him under a 72-hour psych hold.

Still wearing the metallic pantsuit, Luna returns to his office to find it all packed up. Bobbi's packing his office. He asks her why she didn't come bail him out. She replies that that's not what she does anymore.

Flashback: Bobbi sits in the monitoring station with Sophie as Luna calls her a gold digger. She gasps when he admits that Daniella was made up.

When he asks what happened to the office, she explains that she called in her investment note. Now, she owns the company and they're closing it to be sold off in parts. The IRS is waiting out front to discuss the gold assets he never paid taxes on. Tom, the tendon guy, is also looking to talk to him. Bobbi gives him a public dressing down, reminding him that he will die one day and that she will not be at his funeral.

At the plant nursery, the client finally lays her father's ashes to rest with a banana tree. Sophie invites Harry back to the HQ for a Christmas gathering. He chooses to go see his mom.

Back at HQ, Breanna is gloating over the success of the mission. Hardison pops out and congratulates her on being the first to successfully A Christmas Carol a mark. Parker arrives, jumping on Hardison's back. Sophie's with her, and Hardison lets her know a gift arrived for her. It's a banana plant from Cesar.

Eliot pours drinks for himself and Sophie. She thinking about Nate and how, like the banana tree, he died but sent out little green shoots in the Leverage team that have grown into Leverage International, all teams that operate as families and make a difference.

The Hustler Job

Season 3 Episode Number: 33 Season Episode: 4

Originally aired:	Thursday April 24, 2025
Writer:	Kate Rorick
Director:	Marshall Tyler
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Gina Bellman
	(Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Auden Wyle (Becky Wilson), Michael Masini
	(Donovan Keyes), Jeff Chase (Beefy Guard), Lorna Street Dopson (Pe-
	tra), Jake Wynne-Wilson (Milo), Varak Baronian (Goran), Chancelier
	Skidmore (Security Guard), Christopher Heskey (Ivan), Sharon Garri-
	son (Winnifred), Brady Pierce (Terry), Kedar Myers (Bartender)
Summary:	The crew takes on a phone scamming ring that uses deepfake technol-
	ogy to con their marks, run by an old school hustler who came up via
	the pool hall circuit. To infiltrate his organization, they have to best
	him on and off the felt.



In a stately brick mansion, an elderly woman video chats with her frantic granddaughter. At her insistence, she rushes to her computer, where she transfers \$10,0000 to an account number. As soon as the transfer is complete, the granddaughter hangs up.

Outside the Leverage headquarters, Harry's talking to his daughter, Becky, about colleges. Becky's phone rings. It's her grandmother, frantic with worry. Becky denies ever being in jail. She hands her phone to Harry, who asks his mother

what's going on.

Inside headquarters, Eliot fight trains Breanna on how to fall properly. Harry comes in with Sophie, raging about his mother being scammed. Breanna pulls up articles on "grandparent scams." Breanna shows the video that Harry's mother thought was a live call with Becky. It's a manipulated "deep fake" file, created from a real video Becky made.

She explains that if they were trying to fool a voice-matching security system for a Swiss bank account, they'd need about ten seconds of clean vocal footage and a hacker like herself. However, worried grandmas are much easier to fool. By tracing the IP address on the video, they know where the scam originated. She assures him that Parker's already on her way. This sets off alarm bells for both Eliot and Sophie. Eliot races to catch up before Parker does something Parker-y.

At the business complex, Parker sneaks up on a security guard while he's talking on the phone. She has a syringe at the ready, but Eliot nabs her before she can jab the guard. She claims she was only going to knock out the guard to steal his uniform. Eliot doesn't believe all of that.

Breanna narrows the businesses that have the servers needed to run the scam to either a veterinary health care processor or one called Matka Corp. Sophie points out "Matka" means "mother" in Slovakian.

Eliot and Parker walk into Matka Corp., arguing about whether feeding a dog cheese is a good idea. They ask the very large man at the desk to get them their dog's medical files. He tells them

they're in the wrong place. Eliot begs him to show him the way. They leave Parker behind alone, and she cases the space, noting there's nothing out of the ordinary except a door secured with a Glen-Reeder Pressure Gapped 4000C security system. Parker's never seen one before. "What is such a beautiful thing doing with Nana-Haters?" she asks.

She'd need hours to crack it. It'll be easier to use the key card. Just then, the door opens and three men emerge, one in a blue suit and two in tracksuits. Parker drops to all fours and scrambles behind the desk. The large guard returns, and the blue suit tells him they're going to his office.

Using security cams, Breanna identifies the blue suit as Donovan Keyes. Keyes and his goons exit the building with Eliot and Parker close behind. They follow him to his "office," a pool hall. Keyes has a rap sheet for pool sharking, fraud, and gambling.

Back at headquarters, Harry's furiously running a pool table while Breanna briefs the team on Keyes and his connections to a Slovakian criminal gang headed by Nicolai Bravta. The plan is to keep Keyes in the pool hall while Parker and Breanna get through the keyed door to the servers. Once they have all the evidence, they'll send it to their friend at the FBI, McSweeten.

Harry beats Eliot, then challenges Sophie to a game. She insists she's useless at cue games. Eliot and Parker confirm this. And there's a flashback montage. Harry says he should be the Inside Man. Sophie says he'll be the Roper. Parker takes on Eliot at pool blindfolded. Sophie leaves. Harry follows. She tells him the con needs someone who can play it cool. He insists he can. She's skeptical.

Harry tells her his mom still thinks he's a crooked lawyer. Sophie relents and says he can play Inside Man, reminding him that they aren't trying to win, just to keep Keyes busy so Parker can break into the servers.

At the pool hall, Eliot and Sophie draw Keyes's attention. Harry, dressed in a loud multicolored leather jacket and acting quite drunk, howls and jumps in when Eliot calls for challengers. Harry runs the table. Angry at being suckered, Eliot punches Harry, and Keyes intervenes. Sophie lifts the key card from Keyes's back pocket and passes it to Eliot when she steps in, telling everyone to calm down. Keyes throws Eliot out.

Left with just Sophie and Harry, Keyes compliments Sophie on her hustle. Harry challenges him, claiming that he heard about Donovan Keyes while in prison, promising himself he'd look him up and challenge him the day he got out.

Keyes agrees to a friendly game but insists they use his table, #13. Breanna is inside the ceiling above the pool hall, worried about spiders. Flashback to when she was installing the cameras: A staff member approaches Parker, and she ducks out, leaving Breanna stranded. Harry wears glasses that Breanna can feed shot info into.

Over at the office building, Eliot gives Parker the key card. Slipping back into their dog-owning characters, they get close to the large guard, and Parker jabs him with a knock-out injection. After whispering some sweet nothings to the security system, she regretfully flashes the key card to open the door.

Inside, the door opening startles three young people cosplaying the Lord of the Rings. Frightened, they run to the programming room and lock the door. The server room is off the programming room. Parker examines the door and reports that this security system is a 5000X. There's no padlock. It's a completely digital face and voiceprint combined key. Cutting the power will send it into a failsafe. She's breathlessly excited. There's no way to crack it (right now).

Eliot lets Sophie and Harry know that they need more time. The three cosplaying employees huddle in the programming room, worried about what Keyes will do to them and their families. One decides they must purge the system. It'll take 20 minutes for the program to wipe the servers.

Sophie asks Breanna to create a moment of distraction so they can disrupt Keyes's play. It works, but then Harry goes off-script and insists on laying a bet on the game's outcome. He offers up Sophie's necklace as collateral for a \$5000 bet. She pulls him aside and protests that the necklace is worth a lot more than \$5000. Harry insists that raising the stakes will keep Keyes engaged.

Eliot overhears the cosplay kids bemoaning the fact that they'll be stuck in their contracts until they're 80. He figures they're being coerced by the Bravta gang. Meanwhile, Parker and Breanna realize that if they turn off the air conditioning, the servers will go into automatic shutdown. Leaving Eliot to make friends with the programmers, Parker heads to the roof. As Harry plays pool, Keyes chats up Sophie about her role as the Mastermind. Harry deliberately misses a shot. Keyes takes his turn, guessing correctly that Harry wanted to lose the first match. When Keyes's goons prepare to eject Harry, he offers his house as collateral for a second game. This gets Keyes's attention. Harry gives him his real name and profession. Sophie questions whether Keyes can even cover that big a bet. Keyes calls Nikolai Bravta and asks him to stake him for the match. Bravta magnanimously agrees, saying that Keyes never lets him down.

Sophie says that even if it is Bravta, she doesn't see any money on the table. Keyes has Bravta transfer the money to a holding account and shows them a \$500,000 balance. He tells Harry that if he tries to back out of the bet when he loses, the Bravta goons will break all the bones in his body.

As Parker's about to disable the air conditioning on the roof, the very large guard grabs her. They fight until she subdues him and cuffs him to a panel. After stopping the air conditioning, Parker jumps into a vent, announcing she has a date with the Nana-Haters.

In the programming room, the cosplay programmers hear tapping and find Parker inside the server room, tapping on the glass wall. Caught between Eliot outside the door and Parker on the other side of the glass, repeating the statement, "They. Rolled. A. Nana," they feel trapped. The wizard/leader suggests they try to take on Parker. Eliot frantically tries to convince them not to. He asks if they play Illumitrons because he learned some cool moves from Tam on Samurai Midnight.

At the table, Keyes starts to get a read on Harry and correctly guesses why he's there to take him down. Sophie gets in Keyes's head a bit. Keyes tells them he sent some backup goons to his office.

The backup goon attacks Eliot at the door. As they fight, the cosplay programmers back up and realize that Parker's in the programming room with them now. They surrender quickly. Parker roars her triumph.

At the pool hall, Harry takes a turn. When Keyes taunts him about his mother, he removes the glasses and hands them to Sophie. As he takes his next shots, he tells Keyes that it's not about winning. It's about not being a piece of crap. As Harry's about to sink the eight ball, one of Keyes's goons walks behind him and bumps him, causing him to miss his shot.

When they call cheating on that, the goons grab Sophie and Harry, flipping Harry onto the table and holding a hand out that Keyes plans to break. Sophie tells Breanna to create another moment. Breanna crashes through a ceiling tile, landing on the table next to Harry. Sophie breaks free, grabs a pool cue and wields it like a bo, taking out her goon. Harry, Sophie, and Breanna run for it.

Outside the programming room, Eliot takes out the two backup goons. Parker opens the door and pushes the programmers at Eliot.

Outside the building, Keyes and his goons corner Sophie, Harry, and Breanna. Keyes's phone starts ringing. It's Nikolai Bravta, demanding to know where all his money has gone. He hangs up. Keyes accuses the team of stealing the half million. Harry points out that a half million means nothing to Bravta.

Flashback to Parker reaching the server room: She hacks in and finds all the Bravta Swiss bank accounts.

Harry tells Keyes that fooling a Swiss bank account's security is tricky. Flashback to Breanna reviewing what they'd need. Breanna tells Keyes he provided the vocal footage. Flashback to Keyes's call to Bravta to secure the \$500,000.

Sophie reminds Keyes that Bravta is panicking and blaming him. She recommends he start running before his goons get a call from their real boss, and then takes her necklace back. The goons' phones start ringing. Keyes runs, but they catch him quickly and start beating on him. Breanna, Harry, and Sophie watch from a distance.

At headquarters, Breanna shows Harry that all the scammed money was returned to the victims, including Harry's mother. They find Eliot and Parker playing pool. Parker's annoyed that the Nana-Haters didn't get punished. Eliot explains (again) that they were forced to work for the Bravta gang, and McSweeten has them and their families in protective custody.

Eliot, Parker, and Breanna leave arguing about how to fall and land correctly. Alone together, Harry notes that Breanna in the ceiling was part of Sophie's plan. Sophie points out that if he hadn't tried to beat Keyes, he wouldn't have ended up nearly having his hand broken. He admits he didn't play it cool. He leaves to have coffee with his mother, but tells Sophie before leaving that it's too bad she doesn't play cool, she'd probably be great. After he's gone, Sophie picks up a cue and makes a neat shot, indicating that she's conning the team into thinking she can't play.

The Grand Complication Job

Season 3 Episode Number: 34 Season Episode: 5

Originally aired:	Thursday May 01, 2025
Writer:	Andrea Janakas
Director:	Dean Devlin
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Gina Bellman
	(Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Jeri Ryan (Tara Cole), Lucy Taylor (Alexandra Bligh), Alexandra Park
	(Inspector Astrid Pickford), Mary-Bonner Baker (Ursula), Donna Du-
	plantier (Agent Sharon Healey), Angelena Swords (Beatrice), Spencer
	Crim (Young Officer), Joshua Sienkiewicz (Burly Guard), April Patter-
	son (Maria), Keturah Brown (Vault Guard)
Summary:	When Sophie is abducted, rivals Parker and Astrid are forced into a
	desperate race against time to save her by securing the elusive "Grand
	Complication" Marie Antoinette watch. Unaware of each other's in-
	volvement, they embark on a high stakes quest to track her down
	before time runs out.
	Jeri Ryan (Tara Cole), Lucy Taylor (Alexandra Bligh), Alexandra Park (Inspector Astrid Pickford), Mary-Bonner Baker (Ursula), Donna Du- plantier (Agent Sharon Healey), Angelena Swords (Beatrice), Spencer Crim (Young Officer), Joshua Sienkiewicz (Burly Guard), April Patter- son (Maria), Keturah Brown (Vault Guard) When Sophie is abducted, rivals Parker and Astrid are forced into a desperate race against time to save her by securing the elusive "Grand Complication" Marie Antoinette watch. Unaware of each other's in- volvement, they embark on a high stakes quest to track her down



The episode begins with Parker timing herself on a laser obstacle course. As she disarms the lasers, her phone buzzes. A live-feed video of Sophie appears, and a garbled voice instructs her to steal the Grand Complication Marie Antoinette watch in the next hour. If she doesn't, Sophie dies. She must steal the watch with no help.

Elsewhere, Astrid jogs out of the NOLA Training Facility to a gurney where an injured sparring partner lies. Astrid apologizes for hurting him while demonstrat-

ing a kimura armlock. Paramedics wheel him away. Astrid's phone buzzes. The same live-feed of Sophie appears, and the same garbled voice directs her to stop the theft of the Grand Complication Marie Antoinette watch. If she fails to protect the watch, Sophie dies. Astrid gets on her motorcycle and speeds off.

At headquarters, Parker activates the team locator. Hardison is in Paris, France. Harry is located in Montreal. Meanwhile, Eliot is in Pakistan. Breanna is verified in transit. Sophie, however, comes up as "location not found."

Knowing the kidnapper is tracking and monitoring her phone, Parker upturns a bag of burner phones and grabs one.

Dressed in navy fatigues, Breanna drives a food truck, talking with Parker over the team coms as she runs along the rooftops of New Orleans towards the watch's location. Breanna changed the frequency of the coms after receiving Parker's text from the burner.

Speeding through the streets on her motorcycle, Astrid calls the New Orleans regional Interpol office. Agent Sharon Healey is not enthused to get the call.

Breanna parks the food truck and moves into the back to provide Parker with technological backup. She shares that Sophie's credit card pinged at 5:32 pm for high tea at The Proper Petal. Parker rappels down to street level in the alley behind the building where the watch is displayed for a fundraiser. Astrid arrives just after her.

Both women realize the fundraiser attendees are dressed as ladies of Marie Antoinette's court. Astrid tries flashing her Interpol badge to get the security guard to shut the event down. The guard informs her that Interpol isn't a real thing and refuses.

In split-screen synchronicity, Parker and Astrid have Breanna and Sharon, respectively, run the plates of the cars outside the fundraiser. They each grift a different woman and get their outfits.

In an abandoned power station, Sophie sits, handcuffed to her chair. Alexandra Bligh enters, and they rehash their history a bit before Bligh shows Sophie how she's set Astrid and Parker against each other to save Sophie. Sophie's quite incensed, warning her that they despise each other. Astrid gloats, admitting she knew that.

At the fundraiser, Astrid and Parker, both sporting masquerade masks, crisscross paths as they search for the watch. Hostess Beatrice addresses the fundraiser attendees. She reminds the crowd that they'll be recreating the contredanse allemande as it was danced at Versailles.

Breanna hacks the building's cameras and informs Parker that the watch is on display in the vault. Astrid stops a woman in pink to ask where the watch display is. The woman shrugs and giggles. Astrid storms off in frustration. At the vault, Parker overhears the attendant's speech about the watch, valued at \$30 million. Parker realizes the line's too long and plans to go in through the vents.

First Parker, then Astrid, discover that the access grate to the vent system is corroded and won't open. From the factory, Sophie and Bligh watch the surveillance on a laptop, with Bligh calling the play-by-play. Sophie warns her that this won't end well for her. Bligh demonstrates little fear of Interpol arresting her. Sophie cautions that Parker's who she should actually be worried about. "Parker is not like us," she says.

Bligh's security system blips a warning. She discovers someone is hacking her cameras inside the fundraiser. After blocking the hacker, she calls her goons to deal with the hacker. In the truck, Breanna loses access to the cameras, but tells Parker she spotted a Bussmann glass fuse from 1915-ish in the background of the footage of Sophie. By searching the city database for buildings of that era, she narrows down where Sophie is being held.

Wandering over to Catering, Parker discovers the cake toppers are edible replicas of the Grand Complication watch. Finding a liquid nitrogen torch, she lets Breanna know she has the means to open the access panel. She leaves just as Astrid sneaks in to steal a knife. Parker treats the panel with the liquid nitrogen, but is interrupted. Astrid steps up with the knife, but also stops due to the number of people around. She and Parker both conclude that they need to clear the queue to the vault.

Parker drops the torch in a nearby potted plant. Both she and Astrid overhear the attendant at the vault explain that the dance will start in half an hour when the vault will be closed. Astrid approaches Beatrice and urges her to get the dance started since the Mayor will be arriving soon to give her an award. The music begins, and Beatrice rushes out to get people into place. The attendant starts closing up the vault. Parker sneaks in while her back is turned. Astrid scoots in as the vault door shuts. They face off over the watch's display.

As they prepare to do battle, with only ten minutes left in Bligh's ultimatum, Sophie and Bligh watch on the surveillance camera. Bligh digs at Sophie's alleged abandonment of both women. Sophie points out that she has a team and family, while Bligh has no one.

Astrid and Parker circle each other, keeping the watch between them as they argue over whose fault Sophie's endangerment is. Suddenly, a high-pitched sound causes them to cover their ears and the watch's case to shatter. The lights go out for a second, and when they come back on, the watch is gone.

Astrid and Parker look up at the open vent above the watch's display plinth. Sophie accuses Bligh of double-crossing both Parker and Astrid. Bligh denies it. She also states it wasn't the hacker either because she had her goons take care of them. Breanna hears someone banging on the food truck and reports that they've found her. In the vault, Parker climbs up into the vent with Astrid not far behind. They end up on the roof.

There's a grappling hook and a rappel line leading off the building. Astrid starts dialing her phone, but Parker knocks it out of her hand. Astrid pulls out the knife she took from catering. They argue. Parker blames Astrid for chasing her and Hardison across Europe, causing them to split up, and leaving Parker feeling like she'd never see him again. Astrid accuses Parker of stealing Sophie away from her, leaving her feeling abandoned and replaced. Holding the knife on Parker as she leans back over the edge of the building, Astrid tells her that Parker doesn't know love, only steals other people's love. Parker admits she could never steal a mother's love because she doesn't know how it works.

Astrid hesitates, and Parker thrusts herself forward. Someone gets stabbed. Astrid's phone begins to ring from an unknown caller. Astrid picks it up, one hand covered in blood. Bligh, voice garbled by a filter, announces that she failed because the watch is gone. Astrid insists she can still get the watch. Bligh directs her to bring it to her in half an hour, then asks about Parker. Astrid says that Parker is dead. Overhearing it, Sophie gasps.

Astrid hangs up and turns her computer screen to show Sophie that Astrid's tracked phone is moving while Parker's remains still. She doubts that Astrid will catch the real thief, so the \$30 million she was counting on is in the wind. She picks up the gun to kill Sophie. Sophie tells her to consider who was with Sophie when she was kidnapped.

Fast-reverse to before the abduction. Sophie and Tara Cole leave The Proper Petal together. Sophie's asking Tara's advice on navigating her relationship with Astrid. Men jump out of a nearby van, punch Tara, and grab Sophie. Tara breaks a taillight as the van drives away. She pulls out her phone and calls Parker.

When she tells Parker that Sophie's been kidnapped, Parker immediately realizes they did it purposefully when the rest of the team is out of town. She deduces they'll call with a ransom demand, forcing Parker to steal something. Realizing that they'll have the frequency of the coms from Sophie's phone, she warns Tara not to call her phone again. Breanna will be their gobetween.

Tara is Parker's wild card. Parker points out that if the kidnappers knew who Tara was, they'd have taken her too or killed her. Killing her would've been Parker's play. Tara says she would've killed Parker, too, which Parker takes as a compliment. Parker sends Tara to search for the kidnappers' vehicle and says she'll go do lasers until they call her.

That brings us back to the opening scene of Parker running the laser course. Breanna contacts Tara, quite tongue-tied at speaking with the legendary Tara Cole. She fills her in on the kidnappers' demand and sends her the coordinates to the watch. They'll meet up at the fundraiser.

Flashforward to Parker and Astrid's arrival at the fundraiser. Tara joins Breanna in the food truck with a plan to slip in with the catering. Breanna kits her out with a com earbud and a sonic detonator in a sleeve equipped with a retrieval wire. Once Tara has a catering uniform on, she looks for a way into the vault. When Astrid stops the woman in pink to ask where the watch is, it's Tara shrugging and giggling.

Tara's the reason the music starts playing early. Changing out of the uniform, she grabs the torch from the plant and uses it to open the panel. In the vent above the vault, Tara hears Parker arguing and realizes Astrid is involved too. She uses the sonic detonator and retrieval wire and steals the watch. Bligh's goons are banging on the food truck just as Tara reaches the roof. Using the rappel rope Parker left there, Tara gets to street level and helps Breanna take care of the goons.

On the rooftop, Parker and Astrid have their knife moment, cutting Astrid's hand. They agree to work together to save Sophie. When Astrid's phone starts to ring, Parker tells her what to say to Bligh. After Astrid tells Bligh that Parker's dead, they join Breanna and Tara in the food truck.

Breanna spoofs Astrid's phone so the kidnappers won't know they're going to Sophie's location. At the factory, Bligh's about to kill Sophie as Parker and Astrid creep over a high catwalk above them. Sophie tells Bligh she read Astrid correctly, but was out of her depth with Parker. "Parker is magnificent. She has no weaknesses: she's laser-focused. She's been three steps ahead of you the entire time."

Outside, Tara takes out the remaining goons. A gun goes off. Astrid realizes that Parker's not by her side. Astrid jumps down to shield Sophie. Parker enters from the shadows. She tells Bligh her biggest mistake was messing with her family. Bligh fires the gun, but Parker's holding the clip. Parker and Astrid double-team Bligh, leaving her unconscious on the ground. Sophie frees herself from the cuffs easily. Agent Sharon and three police officers enter and arrest Bligh on 29 outstanding warrants.

Back at headquarters, Parker and Astrid compare notes on thefts over Chinese takeaway. Sophie and Tara come in and spot them getting along. Sophie is speechless with joy. Tara leaves, telling Sophie that motherhood suits her. She hands Sophie a tin for Parker. Parker opens the tin to find the Grand Complication watch. In cake form. Prompted by Sophie to share nicely, she cuts it in half and shoves half in Astrid's mouth. Astrid responds in kind. Everyone laughs. Driving away, Tara picks up the real watch and admires it.

The Swipe Right Job

Season 3 Episode Number: 35 Season Episode: 6

Originally aired:	Thursday May 08, 2025
Writer:	Maya Vyas
Director:	Erica Watson
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Gina Bellman
	(Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Noah Wyle (Harry Wilson), Auden Wyle (Becky Wilson), Annet Mahen-
	dru (Reena Trivedi), Maulik Pancholy (Neal Trivedi), Jessie Terrebonne
	(Jolene), Sean Hankinson (Roger), John Neisler (Edgar Allen Wright),
	Anita Sharma (Customs Agent)
Summary:	Sophie's return to dating goes awry when she discovers her newest
	flame is a phony billionaire, swindling men and women on dating apps
	to fund his lavish lifestyle. To dismantle his million dollar scheme, the
	team must create the perfect romantic specimen and bait the ultimate
	catfish.



From the sidelines, Parker's theories on the evils of dating apps border on the surreal. Elliot's attempts to explain his relationship experiences are a masterclass in digging oneself into a hole of self-actualization. Breanna runs the op from headquarters, thoroughly disgusted by their mark's depraved abuse of those desperately seeking love.

Sophie's on a date with Neal Trividi. He shows her a sapphire ring he retrieved at great physical risk and insists on giving it to her. When she asks how he got

into the gem business, he tells her his sister motivated him to make something of his life. He offers to fly Sophie to Havana in his private jet on their next date.

At headquarters, Harry's daughter, Becky, begs him over a video call to let her see his dating profile. He assures her his dating life is going well and says goodnight. Sophie enters. They compare notes. Harry's date ate an entire fish head while Sophie argues that her date was even fishier. The ring he gave her is a fake, and he made an obvious business overture.

Breanna deep dives on Neal. He made millions by pretending to be a billionaire to people he met on dating apps. He takes their money as investments that he never pays back and then hits them up for more to pay for "protection" from his enemies. She pulls up the profiles of the partners he's landed, both men and women. Sophie wants to know who lost the most money to Neal's scheme.

She meets with the ex-partners. One, Roger, an accountant, is still deeply in love with Neal. Another, Jolene, hates him, and when they parted ways, she stole cash and gems to even the score. However, they turned out to be counterfeit.

The team regroups, has a quick discussion about how they find romantic partners, and then, Sophie lays out the plan. They're all going to Havana for her date.

Elliot and Parker con a pilot into leaving the airport and take his place on the plane. Unfortunately, Elliot's never flown a plane before. Uh-oh. Sophie arrives, a new cover story in place that she's an owner in a thriving mining enterprise. As she approaches the plane, Neal's sister, Reena, steps out of the car. She tells Sophie that Neal's already in Havana. Reena will accompany her instead.

On the way to Havana, Reena shares that she manages Neal's savings. It's a bumpy ride. Parker, as the flight attendant, dumps the pretzels on Reena at one point.

Upon arrival, Reena leaves to do some work while Neal whisks Sophie away to the hotel's aquarium-surrounded restaurant. Neal pours champagne while dropping hints about his investment connections and the dangerous people who target him. Sophie innocently asks him for some business advice.

In the lobby, Elliot and Parker stand watch. Parker muses about how dating apps aren't helping Sophie and Harry find partners. Elliot notices Reena on her phone and overhears her saying something about a British woman showing the person on the phone a video of Neal. Parker tries to warn Sophie, but the coms aren't working because the hotel's walls have ferrocement and block transmission like a Faraday cage.

In the restaurant, Neal is very interested in Sophie's ruby mine in Myanmar. His bodyguard interrupts to hand him a phone. He steps away to talk to Reena, who warns him that the British woman Roger warned them about must be Violet (Sophie's pseudonym). Neal returns to the table and tells Violet/Sophie that he's just heard a very interesting story. In the lobby, Elliot and Parker see a couple of goons arrive. Elliot intercepts them on the stairs while Parker runs to rescue Sophie.

Neal interrogates Sophie, believing one of his marks hired her to come after him. He tells her that his empire of lovers may not be as precious as gems, but they are far more loyal. Once she's done her champagne, his goons will take her to the local police. Neal has a close relationship with them, and they'll punish her for her betrayal. Leaving, he calls Roger to thank him.

He leaves the area, and Parker pokes her head out of a nearby door, sickened by the loveydovey talk Neal pours over the phone. She grabs a fire hose. At the table, Sophie chats with the silent bodyguard. They hear a shot fired and jump. Sophie describes what could happen if her rescuers puncture the aquarium glass with their bullets. Water starts pouring in under one door. Sophie advises the guard to run out the other one. He leaves. She opens the first door, revealing Parker holding an open bottle of champagne and the running fire hose.

Back at headquarters, having escaped Cuba in the hold of a boat owned by one of Elliot's friends, a smuggler, Sophie shudders at the memory of being covered in shrimp. Breanna and Harry reveal that Neal rewarded Roger for his loyalty by making him his new money manager. Roger still believes the money is legitimately made in the gem industry. Sophie believes they can get Roger to follow the money and realize the truth on his own.

Now that Sophie, Parker, and Elliot are burned, they need a new lure. Harry's the guy. Breanna makes him over into Arthur Bennett, a public interest lawyer with old money. Meanwhile, Sophie coaches him on how to run a long con.

Waiting for Roger to arrive at work, Parker and Elliot discuss dating apps again. They're wearing FBI jackets. Roger arrives, and they spring into action.

At headquarters, Breanna's makeover is complete. On his plane, Neal checks his matches on the app and swipes right on Arthur Bennett.

Parker and Elliot knock on Roger's office door. They intimate that an estate Roger recently began managing is a front for money laundering. He protests that the money tracks back to a billionaire. Parker questions whether all the money is the billionaire's. Roger suspects Reena and wants to warn Neal, but Parker and Elliot point out that it would make him an accomplice if Neal turns out to be the criminal.

Over dinner, Harry flirts outrageously with Neal. Suddenly, Becky's there. Harry goes over to her. She congratulates him and tells him she's proud of him. Telling him she loves him, she hugs him and leaves. When he turns back to the table, Neal's seat is empty. Panicking that he's lost Neal, Harry turns and finds him standing behind him. Neal says he overheard the conversation and thinks it's beautiful that "Arthur" and his daughter are so close. They return to the table to finish the dinner and date.

The next day, Neal texts 66 times, leaves a voicemail, and sends a dozen red roses. When he phones again, Harry answers. Before Neal can invite him to Havana, Harry invites him to the Bennetts' ancestral estate.

Walking through a pasture with horses, they meet up with Reena. Harry tells Neal that he's donating the land to charity. As an aside, he mentions there are untapped oil reserves under the

land, and he doesn't want to deal with it. He walks away on a phony phone call, leaving Neal and Renna making meaningful eye contact.

As they picnic in a pasture, Reena tries to steer the conversation to proposing that she and Neal manage the land for Arthur. When Neal persists with cutesy romantic talk, she asks to speak with him in private.

Alone, they argue over the approach. Reena wants a business deal. Neal wants to marry Arthur and then inherit everything when Arthur mysteriously dies. Reena tells him he would never have been successful without her. He gets on his phone and texts Roger, telling him to lock Reena out of the accounts. Reena screams in frustration and storms off.

Back at the picnic, Harry's concerned that the con will require him to marry Neal. Sophie reassures him and tells him it's time to reveal his true self. As they walk through the stables, "Arthur" confesses to Neal that he's already given away all his worldly assets. Neal proposes Reena's idea of buying this last property from Arthur and maintain it for him. Reena ambushes them at the stable door, pointing a gun at them and flanked by the bodyguard.

Forcing them into a vehicle, Reena and the guard drive them to an airplane hangar where they're tied up. Reena demands \$20 million from "Arthur," but Neal explains the fortune's gone. Reena hits Neal with the gun's handle. He promises to get her the money from Roger. She dials Roger with Neal's phone and holds it up as a video call. In a call very similar to the fake one he sent to marks before, Neal begs Roger to transfer three million dollars to Reena.

Roger doesn't believe Neal. He tells him he followed the money and discovered the entire scheme. Roger admits he'll be lonely but needs to learn to love himself. He says goodbye to Neal. Neal begs "Arthur" to help him out with some money. Harry informs him he doesn't even have his restraints anymore. Parker pops up, having cut Harry's zip ties. Elliot takes care of the bodyguard. Breanna sneaks into the room. Reena starts to run but returns at Neal's pleas for rescue. The two of them board a plane. Breanna calls ahead to the Mumbai airport.

At the Mumbai airport, Reena presents her bag for inspection. It's full of counterfeit cash and gems, courtesy of Jolene. Flashback to the plane where Breanna stashed the items Jolene stole in Reena's bag. The Mumbai police drag the siblings away.

At headquarters, Sophie sits down with Roger. She lets him know that Neal can never pull his scam on anyone again. Roger thanks her and admits that he's ashamed of being fooled. She tells him she wishes she were more like him. Because of her own loss, she is quick to spot all the red flags in potential future partners. Roger loves wholeheartedly, flaws and all. They promise each other they'll keep trying.

Parker and Elliot sit at the bar. She's changed her thinking on the dating apps. With Hardison's help, she plans on creating their own dating app that saves humanity. Harry and Becky are at the other counter. Becky helps Harry select his next match. Sophie bids Roger goodbye, joins the others, and shares a smile with Harry.

The Shakedown in Clone-Town Job

Season 3 Episode Number: 36 Season Episode: 7

Originally aired:	Thursday May 15, 2025
Writer:	Josh Schaer
Director:	Beth Riesgraf
Show Stars:	Christian Kane (Eliot Spencer), Beth Riesgraf (Parker), Gina Bellman
	(Sophie Devereaux), Aleyse Shannon (Breanna Casey)
Guest Stars:	Cedric Yarbrough (Mayor Armond Bruster), Craig Frank (Clyde
	Bruster), John Charles Meyer (Jack), Julie Ivey (Ethel), Carl Palmer
	(Sheriff Pinkus), Jay Hieron (Vince), Orin Cho (Magistrate), Jenny
	Frame (Local Woman), Keegan Macy (Local Man)
Summary:	Sophie, Eliot, and Parker get caught in a small-town speed trap run by
	a corrupt mayor, and decide to help the oppressed townspeople wrest
	power from his hungry clutches.



An exhausted Eliot drives home in his 2008 Dodge Challenger. Sophie rides in the passenger seat, bemoaning her dating life, and Parker is in the back seat searching for food. At headquarters, Breanna wanders around in a panda onesie, questioning how Sophie could be doing dating "wrong." Sophie says that a lifetime of lying and grifting has made her overly distrustful. Breanna admits that she's created dozens of online bots to build fake interactive histories to use in future cons. However, she also uses them to mess with

real people occasionally.

When Sophie starts questioning Eliot about what he lies about to romantic partners, he steps on the gas to get home faster. Suddenly, a hidden police car pursues them with its siren screaming. The team reports that they've been pulled over. Breanna reminds them that law enforcement might take exception to some of the items from the previous night's con that are in the car's hidden compartment.

The sheriff, Pinkus, demands Eliot's license. Eliot hands over one for Luke Newman. Pinkus tells him to pop the trunk. When Eliot questions this, Pinkus warns him he's already getting a \$300 ticket for speeding in a construction zone. He threatens to tack another hundred on for the look Eliot's giving him.

The situation escalates quickly due to Pinkus's aggressive manner. He impounds the car and arrests Eliot. Breanna looks up the township, Gillon, and discovers it collects \$2.5 million each year by ticketing passing motorists.

Parker and Sophie ride into town with the tow truck driver. He and Sophie strike up a conversation about Yeats's poetry. He gets a call about a kitten with a possible broken leg. Turns out he's the town vet who also drives the tow truck. He drops them outside Ethel's Diner to wait for Eliot. Sophie's a bit smitten.

Parker's still hungry, so she and Sophie wade through the biker gang outside to get into Ethel's. Inside, a man scolds a younger man about how he handles the loans at the town's bank before shooing him away without any breakfast. As Ethel passes by his table, the older man grabs her and complains about the peppers on his omelette. She takes the omelette away without a word. Sophie and Parker watch from the counter.

In the courthouse, Eliot and other defendants are directed to plead guilty or no contest when they face the judge, and they'll get to leave with a slap on the wrist. Eliot wants Harry to help him. Sophie says Harry's in court all week but tells Breanna to try to get a message to him.

In the diner, Sophie chats up Ethel and finds out the loud older man is Armin Brewster, the town's mayor. He's been mayor for 15 years. Ethel used to run the town paper before it shut down. Brewster walks over to greet Sophie and Parker. Sophie comments that whoever's in charge should deal with the riff-raff outside. He tells Ethel he forgot his wallet and leaves without paying. Ethel tells the women the last thing you want to do is piss off the mayor.

Breanna lets Eliot know that Harry says to plead no contest, pay the fine, and get home. Eliot asks the courthouse sheriff, Pinkus, what happens if he pleads not guilty. Pinkus says he'll get stuck in a very small cell for a very long time while they send a call out for the magistrate. He warns Eliot that the last thing he wants to do is piss off the judge.

Sophie and Parker arrive in the courtroom just as Pinkus announces the judge, who turns out to be Armin Brewster, the mayor. Parker theorizes that the mayor and the judge are twins, or possibly clones. Harry informs Breanna by text that it's legal in several states for the mayor to sit as judge.

Once Brewster gets started, he racks up the fines until Eliot's on the hook for a thousand dollars. In addition, he recognizes Parker and Sophie from the diner and charges them another thousand to get the car out of impound. Sophie decides it's time to add Mayor Brewster to their collection of toppled mayors.

Heading back to the diner, Sophie asks Ethel about the history of Gillon and Brewster. After the mill shut down, Brewster made himself mayor and turned the town into a speed trap. He squeezes the townsfolk when he can't make enough off fining people driving through. If anyone tries to challenge him for the mayorship, he sics the biker gangs on them. The only oversight committee, the town council, has only three people on it. Two of them are Sheriff Pinkus and Clyde Brewster.

Eliot's keen to come back in a week to run a con after he's gotten some sleep. Sophie insists they can quickly and easily Field of Dreams Brewster, separating him from his campaign war chest, and setting the town up for a fair election. The plan is to portray Eliot as a racecar driver-turner-track designer representing Apex 300, a race track development company looking to turn Gillon into a racing mecca. Parker's a daredevil driver, Helena von Strom, the future face of Apex 300. Sophie's the rainmaker, Tia Salabianchi, the influencer with the ear of the Apex 300 board.

Sophie approaches Clyde Brewster at the First Bank of Gillon as Tia. She proposes the purchase of the old mill grounds and the property between it and the highway for a mysterious consortium, offering \$50 million. As she takes a fake call from the Apex 300 board, Clyde looks her up and gives Armin a call. Armin has Pinkus with him and sends the sheriff to the mill.

Sophie spots Jack fixing a truck and comes over to talk. They quote some Yeats at each other, and he offers her a bed. At his bed and breakfast. Obviously. Sophie regretfully declines, saying that she's leaving town that night.

When Sophie returns to the bank to meet with Clyde, he brings her to a room to meet with Armin. She furthers the grift, but he leaves without biting. Over the coms, Eliot comments that something's not right. He's headed to the mill on a bicycle. When he arrives, he finds the biker gang set up. He beats them up, sending them off on their bikes to lick their wounds. He discovers a kilo of cut cocaine on the ground. Parker drives up and takes the cocaine with her since the police are on their way to arrest Eliot. Again.

Sophie knocks on Jack's door. He wonders if she's actually willing to trust him. She states she's interested in peeking behind the facade of the house. She spends the night and enjoys a proper cup of tea the next morning.

Jack tells her that he and Ethel believe in the town and want to give it a chance to thrive. He says the only time they made any progress was when Armin went on holiday and the council elected a temporary mayor.

Regrouping with Parker and Eliot, Sophie shares her Jack-made pastries while Eliot informs them that the bikers push drugs at the local truck stop. They realize Armin's been turning a blind eye in exchange for their muscle. If a racetrack were to draw attention to Gillon, the bikers' gig would be over.

Parker decides they need to turn the bikers against Armin. Sophie says that's a part of it. She goes and waits for Armin in Ethel's. He sits down and gloats that they read him wrong. Money's

not as important to him as power. He believes she'll be running out of town by nightfall. She disagrees. She won't be the one running.

Eliot finds the biker gang and plants the idea that Armin is running a cartel deal under their noses. They break open a trailer at the truck stop and find barrels full of bags of flour that Sophie and Parker seeded with the kilo they left with Eliot. The bikers head out to find Armin.

Eliot enters the bank wearing a clown mask, triggering panic in the tellers and clients. While everyone is distracted, Parker steals the keys to the vault. She empties several safety deposit boxes, taking all the bikers' money. Clyde realizes what's happened after Pinkus takes Eliot away. He runs outside and tries to get away in his car. It doesn't start. Sophie sits down in the passenger seat. She promises to fix everything for him in exchange for his vote on the council.

In the courtroom, Jack addresses Armin, having called an emergency council meeting to elect a temporary mayor to replace Armin. He nominates Eliot/Luke Newman. Clyde votes with Jack against Pinkus and runs from the room. Jack takes the gavel from Armin before he can run after Clyde.

Armin runs out of the courtroom and straight into the bikers. Pinkus pulls the bikers off Armin, giving him a chance to escape. Sophie, Parker, and Ethel watch Armin peel out of town. Ethel points out that the biker gang is still set up in town. She asks how they can clean the town up with them around. "Where's the cavalry?" she asks. Sophie states they'll turn up. With a deep sigh, she states, "I trust."

Breanna uses her bots to create buzz and excitement about Eliot as Mayor Newman. At the diner, Sophie waitresses while Ethel revives her paper online, writing about the town and what it has to offer. Breanna sets Ethel's article up to go viral and heads up to Gillon to join the team.

Montage of Eliot doing mayor stuff while the bikers terrorize the town. In the bank, the bikers discover their money is gone. Breanna's there to "push them over the edge," on Sophie's advice. She tells them there was a break-in and recommends that next time, they put their money in a chequing account. They storm out and head to the courtroom, where they try to shake down Eliot. Eliot refuses, and they walk out. He warns Sophie that the bikers are going to do something extreme.

The bikers head to Ethel's and pour gasoline all over the walls and windows. They light a torch, and the head biker holds it up, threatening to burn the building and possibly the whole town down unless they get rid of their new mayor. Ethel can't see how the town will survive. Sophie explains that the plan was always to have the people of Gillon rise up and take their town back.

Jack and the town firefighters arrive in the firetruck. The rest of the town arrives on bicycles, en masse. They face off with the bikers who drop the torch and leave.

Outside Gillon, Parker pulls Armin and Pinkus over for speeding in the construction zone. She finds the stolen bank money in the trunk and arrests them.

In Gillon, Ethel launches her campaign for mayor with a peach-themed festival and a proposal to turn the old mill into a multi-purpose recreation and live concert venue. Clyde thanks Sophie for bringing him and his horticulture degree onto the project.

In the courtroom, a magistrate informs Armin and Pinkus that Mayor Newman has split mayoral and judicial duties forever. She accuses Armin and Pinkus of working with the bikers to sell drugs over the last ten years. Their choice is to plead guilty or no contest.

Outside, Ethel bids Breanna, Parker, and Eliot goodbye, thanking them for their help. She tells them they're welcome in Gillon anytime. Sophie decides to stay in Gillon with Jack for a few days. For his popovers.

Actor Appearances

Robert Aberdeen 1
0204 (Donald Farmington)
Terese Aiello
0110 (Shopper 1)
Eduardo Aldape1
0102 (Panama Lawyer #1)
Hamish Allan-Headley 1
0111 (Earl)
Jason Ament 1
0112 (Goon)
Shravan Amin1
0206 (Josh)
Chase Steven Anderson1
0201 (Tohd)
Mae Anglim1
0206 (Kendall)

— В — —

Mary-Bonner Baker1
0305 (Ursula)
Max Baker2
0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent)
Micah Shane Ballinger1
0208 (Nash's Assistant)
Kim Baptiste 1
0302 (Zoe)
Varak Baronian 1
0304 (Goran)
Artur Zai Barrera 1
0301 (Gustav Ekimov)
Kenny Bartram
0103 (Ivan)
Jillian Batherson1
0111 (2020 Stella's Daughter)
Hunter Baxley
0116 (Uniformed Riz Guard #1)
Henry Bazemore Jr
0302 (Greg)
Samantha Beaulieu
0115 (Chandis Peterson)
Tim Bell
0106 (Guard #2)
Erik Bello
0108 (Head Security)
Rob Benedict
0208 (Gray); 0210 (Gray)
Askia Bennett
0105 (Officer Stuart)
Lawrence P. Beron
0115 (Judge)
Max Bickelhaup1
0114 (Doug)
Joshua Bitton
0202 (Clyde Hammond)

A	Jessica Blackmore1
	0204 (Kimberlee Freeman)
Robert Aberdeen 1	Billy Blair1
0204 (Donald Farmington)	0303 (Tom)
	Holly Bonney1
Terese Aiello	0106 (Maiden)
0110 (Shopper 1)	Ellison Booker1
Eduardo Aldape1	0206 (Travis)
0102 (Panama Lawyer #1)	Nick Boraine1
Hamish Allan-Headley	0213 (Commander Davies)
0111 (Earl) Jason Ament1	Nicolas Bosc1
	0109 (R.I.Z. #2)
0112 (Goon)	Selase Botchway 1
Shravan Amin	0205 (Mitchell Bukner)
0206 (Josh)	Sean Paul Braud
Chase Steven Anderson	0109 (R.I.Z. #1)
0201 (Tohd)	Josh Breslow1
Mae Anglim1 0206 (Kendall)	0201 (Bradley Simkov)
	Lvle Brocato 1
	Lyle Brocato1 0103 (Billy Barnes)
——— B ———	0103 (Billy Barnes)
	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton
——————————————————————————————————————	0103 (Billy Barnes)
Mary-Bonner Baker1	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton 1 0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7) Brianna Brown 1
Mary-Bonner Baker1 0305 (Ursula)	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton
Mary-Bonner Baker1 0305 (Ursula) Max Baker	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton
B Mary-Bonner Baker 0305 (Ursula) Max Baker 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent)	0103 (Billy Barnes)Jeff Brockton0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7)Brianna Brown10110 (Bronwyn Lark)Keturah Brown10305 (Vault Guard)
Mary-Bonner Baker 1 0305 (Ursula) 2 Max Baker 2 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent) 1 Micah Shane Ballinger 1	0103 (Billy Barnes)Jeff Brockton0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7)Brianna Brown0110 (Bronwyn Lark)Keturah Brown1
B Mary-Bonner Baker 0305 (Ursula) Max Baker 2 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent) Micah Shane Ballinger 1 0208 (Nash's Assistant)	0103 (Billy Barnes)Jeff Brockton10102 (R.I.Z. Security #7)Brianna Brown10110 (Bronwyn Lark)Keturah Brown10305 (Vault Guard)Cody Bruno10301 (Handsome Guard)
B Mary-Bonner Baker 0305 (Ursula) Max Baker 2 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent) Micah Shane Ballinger 1 0208 (Nash's Assistant) 1	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton 1 0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7) Brianna Brown 1 0110 (Bronwyn Lark) Keturah Brown 1 0305 (Vault Guard) Cody Bruno 1
B Mary-Bonner Baker	0103 (Billy Barnes)Jeff Brockton10102 (R.I.Z. Security #7)Brianna Brown10110 (Bronwyn Lark)Keturah Brown10305 (Vault Guard)Cody Bruno10301 (Handsome Guard)Chelsea Bryan1
B Mary-Bonner Baker 0305 (Ursula) Max Baker 2 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent) Micah Shane Ballinger 0208 (Nash's Assistant) Kim Baptiste 0302 (Zoe) Varak Baronian	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton 1 0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7) Brianna Brown 1 0110 (Bronwyn Lark) Keturah Brown 1 0305 (Vault Guard) Cody Bruno 1 0301 (Handsome Guard) Chelsea Bryan 1 0107 (ALAY-NA)
B Mary-Bonner Baker	0103 (Billy Barnes)Jeff Brockton10102 (R.I.Z. Security #7)Brianna Brown10110 (Bronwyn Lark)Keturah Brown10305 (Vault Guard)Cody Bruno10301 (Handsome Guard)Chelsea Bryan10107 (ALAY-NA)David Anthony Buglione1
B Mary-Bonner Baker. 1 0305 (Ursula) 2 Max Baker. 2 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent) Micah Shane Ballinger. 1 0208 (Nash's Assistant) Kim Baptiste 1 0302 (Zoe) 1 Varak Baronian 1 0304 (Goran) 1	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton 1 0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7) Brianna Brown 1 0110 (Bronwyn Lark) Keturah Brown 1 0305 (Vault Guard) Cody Bruno 1 0301 (Handsome Guard) Chelsea Bryan 1 0107 (ALAY-NA) David Anthony Buglione 1 0113 (Daniels)
B Mary-Bonner Baker. 1 0305 (Ursula) 1 Max Baker. 2 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent) Micah Shane Ballinger. 1 0208 (Nash's Assistant) Kim Baptiste 1 0302 (Zoe) Varak Baronian 1 0304 (Goran) 1 Artur Zai Barrera 1 0301 (Gustav Ekimov) 1	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton 1 0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7) Brianna Brown 1 0110 (Bronwyn Lark) Keturah Brown 1 0305 (Vault Guard) Cody Bruno 1 0301 (Handsome Guard) Chelsea Bryan 1 0107 (ALAY-NA) David Anthony Buglione 1 0113 (Daniels) Rebecca Buller 1
B Mary-Bonner Baker. 1 0305 (Ursula) 2 Max Baker. 2 0209 (Billy the Gent); 0212 (Billy the Gent) Micah Shane Ballinger. 1 0208 (Nash's Assistant) Kim Baptiste 1 0302 (Zoe) 1 Varak Baronian 1 0304 (Goran) 1	0103 (Billy Barnes) Jeff Brockton 1 0102 (R.I.Z. Security #7) Brianna Brown 1 0110 (Bronwyn Lark) Keturah Brown 1 0305 (Vault Guard) Cody Bruno 1 0301 (Handsome Guard) Chelsea Bryan 1 0107 (ALAY-NA) David Anthony Buglione 1 0113 (Daniels) Rebecca Buller 1 0211 (Officer Noble)

_____ C -

Alexis Capozzi1
0205 (S.O.F.T. Volunteer)
Mike Capozzi 1
0204 (Bob McKinney)
Joanna Cassidy 1
0111 (Stella Voleur)
Robert M Castillo1
0210 (International Cop)
Demi Castro1
0104 (Mateo Navarro)
J. Omar Castro1
0202 (Anton)
Erin Cessna 1
0207 (Police Officer #2)
Brittany Chandler1
0106 (Lucy)
Mosiah Chartock 1
0303 (Ben Jr.)

Jeff Chase 1
0304 (Beefy Guard)
Si Chen 1
0203 (Jane)
Trace Cheramie
0103 (Russian Thug #3)
Orin Cho1
0307 (Magistrate)
Matt Cipro1
0113 (Finch)
Evan Cleaver 1
0115 (Check in Officer)
Dennis Cockrum 1
0113 (McCloud)
Garrett Coffey 1
0207 (Luke Stewart)
Tom Cohan 1
0115 (Oily Roughneck #2)
Andy Cohen 1
0302 (Steve Pointer)
Jack Coleman 1
0301 (Arizona Mike)
David E. Collier 1
0204 (Nick)
Leon Contavesprie 1
0212 (Male Partner)
Annie Cook 1
0204 (Mitzy Lambert)
Walter Coppage1
0208 (Dean Deninger)
Dan Cortese 1
0102 (Corbett)
Steve Coulter 1
0201 (Ralphie Roy)
Ian Covell
0212 (Plumber)
Spencer Crim
0305 (Young Officer)
Turner Crumbley1
0101 (Curator)
Chad Crumley1
0110 (Eivor)

D

Todd D'Amour1
0204 (Giovanni Tosca)
David Dahlgren 1
0114 (Senator Gwynette)
Jackie Dallas1
0101 (Connie Lieu)
Lex Damis 1
0113 (Griffin)
Kraig Dane 1
0111 (Phil)
Tabari Daniels1
0101 (Protestor #1)
Keith David1
0206 (Billy)
Justin William Davis1
0207 (Police Officer #1)
Billy Dec 1
0204 (Jimmy)
Rolexis Delaney 1
0108 (Fake Nate's Date #2)
Liz Reinhardt Delsa 1
0114 (Lesley Stahl Type)
Anand Desai-Barochia4
0208 (Actor); 0210 (Actor); 0212 (Actor); 0213 (Dr.
Phineas Dunbar)

Hannah Devlin 1
0106 (Jenna)
Reed Diamond2
0101 (Fletcher Maxwell); 0102 (Fletcher Maxwell)
Taina Dominguez 1
0209 (Miranda)
Tony Donno 1
0107 (Private Security Guard)
Lorna Street Dopson1
0304 (Petra)
Joe Dryden 1
0108 (Navid's Driver)
Kunal Dudheker 1
0106 (Carter)
Frank Duffy 1
0115 (Jerry Vanton)
Caroline Duncan1
0209 (Cindy)
Jamie Marie Dunn1
0303 (Cop #2)
Donna Duplantier1
0305 (Agent Sharon Healey)
Andy Dylan1
0102 (R.I.Z. Security #6)



Kate Eastman1
0207 (Paige Stewart)
Chelsea Edmundson1
0209 (Joanne)
Elizabeth Elkins1
0101 (Maxwell's Lawyer)
Royal Ervin 1
0302 (Newswoman)

F

Chris J. Fanguy1
0103 (Russian Thug #1)
Marc Farley1
0112 (Travis)
Andrew Farrier 1
0213 (FBI Agent)
Andy Favreau 1
0104 (Jason Crawley)
Jade Fernandez 1
0113 (Roxie Jimenez)
Casey Ferrand2
0104 (Newscaster); 0205 (Newscaster)
Langston Fishburne 1
0116 (Exec)
Jon Fletcher1
0114 (Blake Whitcomb)
Pierson Fodé1
0203 (Kyle Fury)
Pierson Fode
0208 (Actor); 0210 (Actor)
Jenny Frame 1
0307 (Local Woman)
Craig Frank1
0307 (Clyde Bruster)
Jye Frasca1
0212 (Captain)
Anthony Michael Frederick2
0210 (Brimley); 0211 (Brimley)
Claire Frederiksen 1
0206 (Reporter)
Mia Frost 1
0302 (Cheryl)
-

Oscar Gale1
0106 (Bolo)
Madeleine Gardella 1
0201 (Flight Attendant)
Sharon Garrison 1
0304 (Winnifred)
Annunziata Gianzero 1
0104 (Adrienne Bisset)
Margo Gignac 1
0303 (Receptionist)
LaKesha Glover 1
0110 (Shopper 2)
Yadin Goldman1
0303 (Goth Garrett)
Jackie Goldston1
0202 (DeDe Wilkins)
Anthony S. Goolsby1
0302 (Juror #7)
Christopher Gorham1
0209 (Richard Prosper)
Chad Governale1
0104 (Casino Security)
Caroline Avery Granger
0212 (Mirabelle); 0213 (Mirabelle)
Trenise Gray1
0106 (Security Officer)
Jeff Grays1
0116 (Power Station Worker)
Charles Green1
0115 (James Lowe)
Marco Guerrero 1
0113 (Omar Solina)
Choppy Guillotte 1
0114 (James)

Η

Emily Hall 1
0211 (Jenna Monroe)
Bowie Hamilton 1
0107 (Fitbit Security Guy)
Prince Hammond1
0114 (Leon)
Steve Han1
0203 (Tsinghua)
Sean Hankinson 1
0306 (Roger)
Barry Hanley
0114 (Beefy)
Mike Harkins
0205 (Orpheus Officer #3)
Owen Harn
0103 (Jake)
Rachael Harris 1
0302 (Judge Marlene Gannon)
Tyla Harris 1
0301 (Isabelle Dulotte)
Celeste Hart 1
0212 (Female Partner)
Melanie Haynes 1
0205 (Maureen)
Jeremy Landon Hays 1
0114 (Karl)
James Healy Jr 1
0107 (Police Chief)
Brent Phillip Henry 1
0115 (Radio Operator)
Christopher Heskey1
0304 (Ivan)

Jay Hieron1
0307 (Vince)
Bernard Hocke 1
0103 (Lloyd Van Winkle)
Aldis Hodge
0101 (Alec Hardison); 0102 (Alec Hardison); 0116
(Alec Hardison); 0201 (Alec Hardison); 0204
(Alec Hardison); 0206 (Alec Hardison); 0213
(Alec Hardison); 0301 (Alec Hardison)
Jency Griffin Hogan1
0207 (Female Driver)
Betsy Holt 1
0101 (Jenny)
Michael Francis Horn1
0112 (Rick Saffron)
Adam Horwitz 1
0116 (Uniformed Riz Guard #2)
Abraham Hsu 1
0116 (Eugene)
I
L

Mary Hollis Inboden 1
0303 (Bobbi)
Denitra Isler1
0207 (Janice)
Julie Ivey 1
0307 (Ethel)

J

Idella Johnson 1
0206 (Jessica)
Scott Daniel Johnson 1
0107 (Buddy Harwick)
Jordan Joseph 1
0211 (Waitress)

Κ

Lawrence Kao 1
0107 (Joseph Cheng)
Georgui Kasaev1
0201 (Pilot)
Benjamin Keepers1
0207 (Leroy)
Bill Kelly1
0111 (Judge Clark)
Nadiya Khan1
0104 (Sana Al-Abadi)
Jade Kindar-Martin1
0108 (Bodyguard)
John C. Klein1
0103 (Poker Player)
Jim Klock1
0204 (Justin Richfield)
Raphael Knotts II 1
0206 (Ben)
Aury Krebs 1
0114 (Emily)
Michael Krikorian 1
0115 (Control Room Operator)
I

Kue Lawrence	1
0204 (Mason)	
Amy Le	1
0112 (Tien)	

C.J. LeBlanc1
0109 (Maurice)
Cecilia Leal 1
0104 (Isabella Navarro)
Melissa Lehman1
0204 (Ally)
Joshua Leonardo1
0103 (Croupier)
Craig Leydecker
0103 (Marco)
Melissa Lightfoot 1
0101 (Protestor #2)
Morgan Lindholm 1
0112 (Sarah Nichols)
Anna Grace Loman 1
0109 (Emma)
Carlos Lopez1
0104 (Xavi)
Escalante Lundy 1
0101 (Neighbor)
Rachel Lynne1
0209 (Platinum Mama #2)

Μ

Keegan Macy1
0307 (Local Man)
Annet Mahendru 1
0306 (Reena Trivedi)
Tevin Marbeth1
0302 (Mateo)
Piter Marek1
0103 (Austin Chaudry)
James Marsters
0112 (Carl)
Matthew Paul Martinez
0116 (Power Station Guard)
Michael Masini
0304 (Donovan Keyes)
Mike Massimino1
0105 (Lyle Herbert) T.C. Matherne
0105 (Deke Herbert)
Kim Matula1
0104 (Krista)
Mike Mayhall
0116 (Guard #2)
Dominique McClellan 1
0303 (Cop #1)
Kamille McCuin 1
0108 (Morning Host)
Judy McDowell 1
0204 (Bitsy Lambert)
Larry D.E. McGhee II 1
0205 (Guard #2)
Antonio C. McGill 1
0109 (Jason)
Matt McTighe1
0105 (The Wraith)
Jonathan Medina 1
0205 (Paul Orozco)
Joberde Metellus
0111 (Jean-Pierre)
John Charles Meyer
0307 (Jack)
Ivan Mok1
0203 (Tam)
Chris Monberg
0116 (Guard #1) Ritchie Montgomery1
0103 (Dennis)

Victor Moran 1
0103 (Card Player)
Amy Motta1
0115 (Grace)
Lauren L. Murray 1
0110 (News Announcer)
Kedar Myers1
0304 (Bartender)
Gabriel Myles1
0111 (Antonio)

Ν

O

Ρ

Manon Pages 1 0108 (Staff Member) Regino Palma.....1 0105 (Hamilton) Carl Palmer.....1 0307 (Sheriff Pinkus) Maulik Pancholy 1 0306 (Neal Trivedi) Jeffrey Vincent Parise.....1 0211 (Hank Hogan) Alexandra Park......2 0213 (Astrid Pickford); 0305 (Inspector Astrid Pickford) Gwen Parker.....1 0108 (Fake Nate's Date #1) Wyatt Parker 1 0115 (Damon Vanton) Shane Partlow.....1 0205 (Orpheus Officer #1) Hash Patel.....1 0207 (Ravi) April Patterson 1 0305 (Maria) Jay Patterson.....1 0205 (General Lionel Frick) Timothy Perez-Ross.....1 0207 (Jorge) Kevin Phan 1 0112 (Bao) Desmond Phillips 1 0207 (Francis) Brian Philpot 1 0103 (Russian Thug #2) Brady Pierce 1 0304 (Terry)

Andrea Pizza1
0115 (Newscaster)
Cindy Pol 1
0209 (Platinum Mama #3)
Satya Nikhil Polisetti1
0302 (Elton)
Kyler Porche1
0104 (Liam)
Drew Powell 1
0112 (Jack Hurley)
Zach Primo 1
0203 (Dale)
R
T /

R

Rashif
0209 (Ronald)
Gail Rastorfer
0210 (Carol); 0211 (Carol Barsten)
Ili Ray1
0201 (Nadia Volkov)
Alec Rayme 1
0102 (Diego)
Munda Razooki1
0106 (Michael)
Samuel Reece
0303 (Florist)
Sean Richmond 1
0111 (Earl's Cronie)
Jamar Rivers1
0108 (Drago)
David Clayton Rogers 1
0110 (Chad Deihle)
James Preston Rogers 1
0203 (Brock)
Xingu Del Rosario1
0208 (Romero Delgado)
Jeri Ryan1
0305 (Tara Cole)
·····

_____ S

Helen Sadler1
0111 (Josephine)
Gillian Saker
0105 (Tina Reynolds)
Eric Salazar 1
0112 (Frank Dupree)
Jeremy Sande 1
0113 (Greenbeach Hospital Cop)
Christoph Sanders1
0302 (Frank Stanford / Tim)
Dino Dos Santos 1
0102 (CCTV Guard #1)
Shawn Sanz 1
0107 (Reece)
Kevin Saunders 1
0212 (Security Guard)
Michael Savalir1
0201 (Ghost Pepper Guard)
Doug Savant
0206 (AG James Hodgins); 0208 (Actor); 0210 (Ac-
tor)
Katryn Schmidt 1
0110 (Customer)
Sara Osi Scott2
0101 (News Reporter); 0113 (Newscaster)
Summer Selby1
0103 (Lenore Petitpas)
Kamran Shaikh 1
0104 (Arif Al-Abadi)

Anita Sharma1
0306 (Customs Agent)
Labrandon Shead1
0205 (Braddock)
Max Sheldon 1 0106 (Jim Cordozar)
Taylor Shurte1
0207 (Morgan)
Rose Sias1
0209 (Guard)
Joshua Sienkiewicz 1
0305 (Burly Guard)
Julian Silver1
0211 (Keith)
Gunter Simon1
0107 (Initrode Guard)
Chancelier Skidmore1
0304 (Security Guard)
Chauncey Slack1
0303 (Ben Akondro)
Joey Slotnick 1
0108 (Fake Nate)
Lindsey G. Smith1
0107 (Libby)
Sebestien Soliz
0102 (Judge Ramos)
Zarah Hokule'a Spalding1
0303 (Goth Gail)
Bonnie Gayle Sparks
0210 (April); 0211 (April)
Doug Spearman
0201 (Fortescue) K. Steele
0111 (Cop #1) Adam Stephenson2
0208 (Jeff Leland); 0210 (Jeff Leland)
French Stewart
0106 (Deric Springer)
Christian Stokes
0109 (Kelsey)
Eric Stratemeier
0115 (Oily Roughneck #1); 0116 (Suited Riz Secu-
rity 'Tossed Guy')
Michael P. Sullivan
0205 (Orpheus Officer #2)
Caden Swain 1
0115 (Elston Taylor)
Angelena Swords1
0305 (Beatrice)
Dother Sykes1
0116 (Uniformed Riz Guard #3)

Т

Nick E. Tarabay 1
0108 (King Navid)
Ashley Holliday Tavares 1
0110 (Melanie Brown)
Lucy Taylor
0101 (Alexandra Bligh); 0109 (Alexandra Bligh); 0115
(Alexandra Bligh); <mark>0116</mark> (Alexandra Bligh); <mark>0305</mark>
(Alexandra Bligh)
Jessie Terrebonne1
0306 (Jolene)
John Hans Tester
0115 (Ethan Bradford); 0116 (Ethan Bradford)
Ben Thompson 1
0113 (Abel)
Nick Augusta Thompson1
0101 (Todd)

Chris Ufland1 0206 (Peter Marsh)
V
Reginal Varice

U

W
Erin Ruth Walker1
0208 (Emma Camore)
Stephen Walker Jr1
0109 (Charlie)
Kanesha Washington 1
0303 (Gisele)
Sidney W. Webb 1
0203 (Sean Wolff)
Sara Wells 1
0112 (Jennifer)
Michelle West1
0103 (Vanessa)
Emani White 1
0103 (Ava Petitpas)
Brittany N. Williams 1
0113 (Nurse)
Eltony Williams 1
0113 (Boggs)
Virginia Williams 1
0209 (Debra Prosper)
Christopher Winchester 1
0113 (Collins)
Sam Witwer1
0303 (Peter Luna)
Loki D. Wolf 1
0213 (Control Room Guard)
Michael Wozniak 1
0101 (Lawyer)
Leigh Wright 1
0115 (Hospital Cop #2)
Auden Wyle3
0115 (Becky Wilson); 0304 (Becky Wilson); 0306
(Becky Wilson)
Noah Wyle5
0301 (Harry Wilson); 0302 (Harry Wilson); 0303
(Harry Wilson); 0304 (Harry Wilson); 0306 (Harry
Wilson)
Jake Wynne-Wilson1
0304 (Milo)

Michael Yahn......2 0106 (Guard #1); 0113 (Ertz) Cedric Yarbrough 1 0307 (Mayor Armond Bruster) Tadasay Young 1 0110 (Dr. Beth Duque) Ned Yousef.....1 0102 (CCTV Guard #2) Ζ ____

— Y

Rasha Zamamiri	. 1
0108 (Liliana)	